Public Document Pack

Argyll

Argyll and Bute Council

Combhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid l%}?Bl‘lte
Customer Services COUNCIL

Executive Director: Douglas Hendry

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604444
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

e.mail —douglas.hendry@argyll-bute.gov.uk

15 April 2010

NOTICE OF MEETING
A meeting of the ARGYLL AND BUTE LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held in the COUNCIL

CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on THURSDAY, 22 APRIL 2010 at 2:00 PM, which
you are requested to attend.

Douglas Hendry
Executive Director - Customer Services

BUSINESS
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)

3. CONSIDER NOTICE OF REVIEW REQUEST: 112 WEST PRINCES STREET,
HELENSBURGH

(a) Notice of Review and Supporting Documents (Pages 1 - 76)
(b) Responses from Interested Parties (Pages 77 - 96)
(c) Applicant Response to Comments from Interested Parties (Pages 97 -

104)

ARGYLL AND BUTE LOCAL REVIEW BODY

Councillor Roddy McCuish Councillor Alex MacNaughton
Councillor Donnie MacMillan

Contact: Hazel Kelly Tel: 01546 604269



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3a

OFFICIAL USE

o ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL
WWW.ARGYLL-BUTE.GOV. UK/** 5 /5 /’ o

(Ws)

NOTICE OF REVIEW Date Receive

Notice of Request for Review under Section 43(a)8
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 and the Town and
Country Planning (Schemes of Delegation and Local Review Procedures
(Scotland) Regulations 2008

Important - Please read the notes on how to complete this form and use
Block Capitals. Further information is available on the Council’s Website.
You should, if you wish, seek advice from a Professional Advisor on how to
complete this form.

(1) APPLICANT FOR REVIEW (2) AGENT (if any)

Name Mr.G Burgess Name JB DesignConsult Ltd.

Address | 112 West Princes St. Address | 10 Kenilworth Avenue
Helensburgh Helensburgh

Postcode| Ggg4 8xD Postcode | G84 7R
Tel. No. | 01436 674144 Tel. No. | 07545 325 806
Email - Email info@jb-designconsult.co.uk
(3) Do you wish correspondence to be sent to you or your agent | X
(4) (a) Reference Number of Planning Application | 09/01417/PPP
(b) Date of Submission 18 September 2009
(c) Date of Decision Notice (if applicable) 18 February 2010
(5) Address of Appeal Property 112 West Princes Street,
Helensburgh,
G84 8XD




(6) Description of Proposal

(7)

Page 2

Outline Planning Permission for the erection
of 5 No. Dwelling houses at 112 West
Princes Street, Helensburgh G84 8XD

Please set out the detailed reasons for requesting the review:-

1.

The Applicant believes that the Application proposal is capable of supporting a
specific housing need for the local community, and that the proposal has been
unsympathetically considered in the Planning Department's reference to Council
policies, and their subsequent Refusal.

(The Applicant has therefore prepared the enclosed Scheduled Document Number 1 which
provides responses to the Planning Department’s reasons for refusal in its Report of
Handling.)

The Applicant believes that the immediate local community and neighbouring
properties support the Proposal, and that this appears to have been ignored by
the Planning Department in making its decision of Refusal.

(The Applicant has therefore prepared the enclosed Scheduled Document Number 2 which
makes reference to local community support previously supplied.)

The Applicant is disappointed that no opportunity has been given to respond to
the formal specific criticisms of the Planning Department prior to the issue of the
Refusal. The Applicant has issued as requested during the Planning process a
Supporting Report on the 17" November 2009, and subsequently on several
occasions has made written requests for a dialogue regarding the specific issues,
to enable discussion and agreement on a proposal which would satisfy Planning
policies.

The first formal written documentation to the Applicant from the Planning
Department on specific issues was on the same day as the date of refusal — 18"
February 2010, 5 months after the date of Validation of the Application.

(The Applicant has therefore prepared the enclosed Scheduled Document Number 3 which
includes historical letter and email correspondence with Planning Services, highlighting the
requests for specific comments to form the basis of a dialogue to agree a proposal which
would be satisfactory to the Council.)

The Applicant notes that there have been no formal requests for extensions of
time beyond the statutory two - month Planning Application process, from the
Planning Services. The formal Planning Application process in this instance has
taken exactly five months (three more than the Government's stated target) to
reach a formal conclusion.

This followed a period of approximately five months of pre-application discussions
which were not productive. As the Applicant is 75 years old and planning his
overdue retirement, he believes a period of ten months of trying to get an answer
is unreasonable. This appears to fly in the face of the Governments stated
objective to ‘speed up’ the Planning process, especially as this Application was
minor and local.

(Copies of correspondence during the pre-application period are available if requested.)




Page 3

(8) If the Local Review Body determines that it requires further information on
“specified matters” please indicate which of the following procedure you would
prefer to provide such information :-

(a) Dealt with by written submission

(b) Dealt with by Local Hearing

(c) Dealt with by written submission and site inspection

X

(d) Dealt with by local hearing and site inspection
NB It is a matter solely for the Local Review Body to determine if further information
is required and, if so, how it should be obtained.

(9) Please list in the schedule all documentation submitted as part of the
application for review ensuring that each document corresponds to the
numbering in the sections below:-

Schedule of documents submitted with Notice of Review (Note 3 paper
copies of each of the documents referred to in the schedule below
must be attached):

No. Detail

1 Extract from Development Services Delegated Planning Application Report and
Report of Handling, with the Applicant’s responses to the points made.

2 Applicant’s Report on the level of local community support for the proposals,
and extract from his submitted Supporting Report.

3 Applicant's Record of requests made to the Planning Services for specific
written objections to respond to and amend the proposals.

4 CoEy of Original Planning Application and Drawing No. GB/A/ 01 submitted on
17" September 2009, and Council letter of receipt and Validation, for reference.

5 Copy of Applicant’s supporting Report, further drawing No. GB/A/02, and
covering letter submitted on 17™ November 2009, for reference.

6 CoEy of Planning Services Refusal of Planning Permission in Principle dated
18" February 2010, for reference.

7 CoEy of Development Services Delegated Report and Report of handling dated
26" January 2010, for reference.

8

9

10

If insufficient space please continue on a separate page. Is this is
attached? (Please tick to confirm)




Page 4

Submitted by W/Z 7

(Please Sign)  |“Agent for Applicant Dated

02 March 2010

JB DesignConsult Ltd.

Important Notes for Guidance

1.

2.

All matters which the applicant intends to raise in the review must
be set out in or accompany this Notice of Review

All documents, materials and evidence which the applicant
intends to rely on in the Review must accompany the Notice of
Review UNLESS further information is required under Regulation
156 or by authority of the Hearing Session Rules.

Guidance on the procedures can be found on the Council’s
website — www.argyll-bute.gov.uk/

If in doubt how to proceed please contact 01546 604331 or email
localreviewprocess@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Once completed this form can be either emailed to
localreviewprocess@argyli-bute.qov.uk or returned by post to
Committee Services (Local Review Board), Kilmory,
Lochgilphead, Argyll, PA31 8RT

You will receive an acknowledgement of this form, usually by
electronic mail (if applicable), within 14 days of the receipt of your
form and supporting documentation.

If you have any queries relating to the completion of this form please contact
Committee Services on 01546 604331 or email localreviewprocess@aragyll-

bute.gov.uk

For official use only

Date form issued

Issued by (please sign)




Page 5

S i e e SR 2 S e S S SIS S e A N e

Notice of Review
— Application
number
09/01417/PPP

Document No. 1

et s R G S R e

Extract from Development
Services Delegated Planning
Application Report and Report
of handling, with the
Applicant’s responses to the
points made

e P R e e VR S A A R R S RS ST R




Page 6

Notice of Review — Planning Application reference 09/01417/PPP-Scheduled Document
Number 1

Extract from the Development Services Delegated Planning Application Report and Report of
handling, with the Applicant’s responses on the points made inserted in blue italics for clarity: -

(P)
A.

Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations
Settlement Strategy

The site is iocated within the Settlement boundary of Helensburgh and within
Helensburgh Town Centre as defined by the Argyll & Bute Local Plan. Policy STRAT
DC1 of the Structure Plan is applicable as well as Policies LP ENV1, LPENV 19, LP
HOU1 and Appendix A of the Local Plan. These Policies give guidance on the scale of
developments that are acceptable within the settlements and also the design principles
including layout and density. It is considered that the proposed development does not
accord with these policies.

(The Applicant disagrees with this opinion and considers that the proposals generally accord with
all of the above stated Policies, and to justify this refers to specific points within this Planning
Report below)

Location, Nature and Design of Proposed Development

The proposal is to erect 3 dwellings and 2 flats on a site where there is an existing
commercial garage and outbuildings. The site measures approximately 415 metres
square. However 25 square metres of this is taken up with the access lane giving a
useable area of approximately 390 square metres. The site lies to the rear of an existing
2 storey building which has a retail unit at ground floor level and domestic
accommodation at first floor level. It is within the town centre and the site is surrounded
by tenement buildings. The site is therefore considered to be backland development.

While this is an outline application, indicative plans have been provided to show how
these dwellings would fit into the site. It is proposed to have a mews style development
with the proposed dwellings using approximately the same footprint as the existing
garages. This will have 3 dwellings to the west of the site where there are existing
outbuildings and 2 flats to the rear of the site where the existing garages are. This would
provide a courtyard area to the front of all of the dwellings. A patio and garden area
would be available for 2 of the properties and this will be tucked into the north east of the
site.

It is considered that the proposal is overdevelopment of the site, is backland
development and out of keeping with the settlement pattern of the area, which is
contrary to Policy LP ENV 19 of the adopted Local Plan.

(The Applicant has not disputed that this proposal is backland development, but this according to Council
policy is not necessarily a negative issue. The Council Policy LP ENV 19, Appendix A, states)

*11.2 Back-land development can provide additional housing within existing
residential areas and make good use of neglected and/or unused vacant
land. However, such development needs to take account of the settlement's
existing built character and the area's historical development. It
requires to be designed to maintain the privacy and amenity of the
original property and allow for an appropriate and safe vehicular and
pedestrian access.’

(The Applicant has put a case forward in his submissions to satisfy the above points of policy. See the
relevant Extract from the Applicant’s Supporting Report pages 4-6 overleaf:-)




Page 7

3. Response to Planning Department concerns regarding ‘backlands
development’

The Council Local Plan ( pages 106 — 107, see copy extracts following this section ) specifies the
relevant policy for this type of development. The proposals can certainly be described as ‘backlands
development’, but this is not necessarily a negative issue, as the Local Plan also states.

We believe the proposals accord with the spirit of Council policy ( paragraph 11.2 on page 107 —-
Local Plan) in this type of development with regard to providing additional housing within (
predominantly in our opinion ) residential areas and make good use of neglected and unused (
under-used and redundant in this case ) vacant land.

The policy further states that this type of development needs to take account of the existing
settlement character and the area’s historical development. This is justified in section 8 of this

report.

Also there is a requirement to maintain the privacy and amenity of the orfginal property (we
interpret this to include neighbours). Compliance with these conditions is justified under sections 5
and 7 respectively in this report.

Historical precedent for residential ‘backlands development’ exists in many parts of Helensburgh.
We recognise that some of these are not necessarily well located or designed. There are three
examples located within only 30 - 70 metres of the site boundary. The sites are shown on the
following maps with relevant photographs for reference.

These all vary in dates of construction, and some do not attain current standards of design quality,
but appear to be popular and successful in the long term. This may be because the property values °
are lower comparatively than street facing housing. However this offers lower income purchasers a
more affordable option in the local housing market. Similarly the Application proposals will offer this
economic benefit to satisfy what we believe to be an established need in the local community.

In view of the apparent 100% occupancy levels in these historical residential ‘backlands’
developments, we believe there is a proven long-term sustainability of this type of housing,
particularly in the immediate location of the Application site, therefore justifying the ‘backlands’
layout of the Application proposals .

The quality of design and materials in the proposals will meet the high standards demanded by both
the Council and an increasingly discerning public, and these are referred to in Section 8.

.11.2 Back-land development can provide

Back-land Development

111 Back-land development can be defined
as new development behind a row or group of
existing buildings.. Access to such development
is normally gained via a separate road from that
serving the existing buildings, although joint
accesses are sometimes possible.

additional housing within existing residential
areas and make good use of neglected and/or
unused vacant land. However, such
development needs to take account of the
existing settlement character and the area’s
historical development. It reguires to be
designed to maintain the privacy and amenity of
the original property and allow for an
appropriate and safe vehicular and pedestrian
access.

11.3  Planning applications for back-land
sites should include details that clearly indicate
the siting, aspect and height of the building, the
proposed and existing accesses, and a clear,
scale plan of all adjacent roads and footpaths.




Page 8

Plan showing existing and historical Backlands development of housing within
30-70 metres of the Application site:

Two-storey flats over ground floor parking Two-storey housing dating from

behind the Library, dating from early — mid nineteenth century

the nineteen-nineties

8 :
})Medica( ;
Centre

Thiree -storey flats.

dating from mid- late nineteenth century

{ see next page for Photographs )@




Page 9

Photographs of existing and historical Backlands development of housing
within 30-70 metres of the Application site:

Two-storey flats over ground floor parking Two-storey housing dating from

behind the Library, dating from early — mid nineteenth centuryJ/

the nineteen-nineties

Three -storey flats

dating from mid- late nineteenth century




Page 10

There are examples of backland development in close proximity to the development, the
closest being the Flats at 90 West Princes Street which are just 27 metres from the
application site. However, these buildings are located to the north boundary of the site
and their rear elevation looks onto a play area which gives an open outlook.

(The Flats referred to are one of three nearby backlands developments. Aithough they have an
open outlook to the rear, there are hardly any windows and all of these are to bathrooms or
kitchens. All the main apartments of these flats face southwards into their shared courtyard to
obtain sunlight, just as the Applicant’s proposals, which will also have an open outlook to the rear,
north-east over the Council Library car park. Therefore the Applicant’s proposal meets the
Council criteria to ‘take account of the settlement’s existing built character and the area’s
historical development’ with regard to the rear properties. See extract from the Applicant’s
Supporting Report pages 16-17 overleaf which makes this point. )

The proposed development will be enclosed and constrained by surrounding flatted
properties. While minimum window to window distances may be met and the applicant
has shown in the supporting statement that sunlight and daylight are not an issue, it is
considered that the privacy and amenity of any prospective residents would be adversely
affected.

(The privacy of prospective [and existing neighbouring] residents in the proposals complies with
current national legislation, and also with the Council policy under ‘Overlooking’ in Appendix A
previously referred to).-

' Overlooking

13.1 Privacy in the home is something that everyone has a right to expect,
and in order to protect this basic right, new development needs to be
carefully sited and designed. The use of windows that are taller than they
are wide can greatly reduce problems of overlooking, particularly in
built-up areas or where the road or footpath is close to the house.

13.2 The following standards have been successfully applied by the Council
for many years and it is intended that their use will continue.

13.3 No main window of a habitable room (i.e. all rooms except bathrooms
and hallways) within a dwelling shall overlook (directly facing) the main
windows of habitable rooms in neighbouring dwellings at a distance of less
than 18 metres*. Plans submitted with planning applications will be
required to show the location of all adjoining properties and the exact
position of their main windows. A distance of 12 meters is required
between habitable room windows and gable ends or elevations with only non-
habitable room windows.’

(The Applicant’s proposals comply with the required privacy distances, and are equivalent to all
new housing or flatted developments which have apartment windows opposite or at 90 degrees to
each other. The Council Report states above that * minimum window to window distances may be
met ‘ [meaning we presume in context are met], therefore the privacy of bcth the existing and
prospective residents is respected and accepted by the Planning Department. Therefore this
criticism is not justified. The measurements proving this are contained in the Applicant’s
Supporting Report pages 12-14)




Page 11

View from neighbouring property of existing commercial sheds
' : g §




Page 12

8. Architectural design and materials proposed

The Local Plan requires this type of backlands development to take account of the existing
settlement character, and the area’s historical development. We have referred in Section 3 to the
historical nature of backlands development in the immediate neighbourhood, as precedent for the
Application proposals.

The proposals have been designed to knit into the historical urban fabric of the area. The maps and
photographs below demonstrate that the plan layout of the proposals repeats an historical
established form of site development, with buildings including houses built in a linear form along the—
rear of the plots. Properties have been extended into the plots from the street frontage buildings.
Therefore the proposals simply emulate this historical pattern of development, ensuring a similarity
to existing urban form.

The architectural design relates to the surrounding mix of traditional properties, with proposed
similar sloped roofs, dormer windows, render/stonework, and windows with similar and traditional
proportions to those in the neighbourhood. There will be high quality paviours to form the courtyard
surface, and high quality planting, with sustainable timber screens to the bins. See the previous

aerial photomontage for the scale and character of the architectural design proposed.

Play Area

7




Page 13

Appendix A of the adopted local plan states that all developments should have some
private open space, with courtyard style developments only occupying a maximum of
45% of their site. On the rear elevation the development would be hard up against the
boundary wall of the flats to the west. The dwellings will have no curtilage at the rear and
a limited curtilage to the front, each comprising a small area measuring 4.5m by 7 (31.5
square metres) which is virtually all hard surface including bin stores. Each of the
proposed dwellings is indicated to take up approximately 61% of the individual plots. The
flatted development will also have a limited curtilage comprising a small area of garden
ground measuring approximately 6.2 by 6.2 metres (38 square metres). The applicant
has shown that there are a number of modern flatted developments within Helensburgh
that have less open space associated with them and most of this is given over to
parking. However, these developments all have direct road frontages as well as open
aspects to the rear which contribute to the feeling of open space and their setting.

(The Applicant considers that the proposal provides satisfactory amenity space within this type of
courtyard development. There is a total of 135 m2 open external ground floor space [having
subtracted 25 m?2 for the access lane] available as a combination of private space and communal
amenity area [including bin stores] for residents. This represents an average area of 27 m2 per
dwelling, partly private and partly shared.

As accepted by the Planning Department above, the Applicant has proved that some recent
flatted developments in Helensburgh are more intensively developed than these proposals. It is
also accepted by the Applicant that they all have a better outlook, but that issue is referred to at
the end of this section. However none of these other examples have any private external
ground floor amenity space for each flat.

And with reference to the space available for residents to use for leisure / amenity in these three
recently built examples, they can offer approximately only zero, 18 and 24 m2 per dwelling on
average respectively, compared to the 27 m2 average in the proposals . Additionally aimost all of
this shared open space in the comparative examples, if available at all, consists of perimeter
planting beds not suitable for amenity use [Car parking area has been subtracted from these
calculations as this is not capable of offering amenity use]

Therefore the Applicant has proved that the site is not over-developed both in relation to
intensity compared to three other recently built examples approved by the Council, and
submits that amenity space available for residents practicable use in the proposals is also
significantly greater than the comparative examples, and therefore believes the density of
development is Jess than other flatted proposals approved recently by the Council on sites out of
the town centre, and therefore the proposed density is appropriate for this fown centre site.

See pages 7-8 in the Applicant’s Supporting Report regarding the three comparative flatted
developments referred to above)




Page 14

On the basis of the flats to the west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the site,
the size of the application site, the number of properties proposed, the limited outiook
and amenity space of both the proposed dwellings and the flats and that in turn the
proposed flats overlook the dwellings then this proposal constitutes over-development
and its amenity would be severely undermined. The site also has little amenity area
associated with the development.

(The Applicant disagrees with the above negative comments as stated below:-)
‘flats to the west which dominate, constrain, and overshadow the site’

(The three single-storey dwellings to the west have an eaves height of approximately 3 metres
with a shallow sloped roof. Therefore they are not a dominative element. This is a courtyard
development which by character will have enclosed spaces, but not adversely constraining or
affecting the use of the site. The height of these three elements cannot overshadow the site as a
whole, and will only provide single-storey shadow over the courtyard for a short period in late
evening sunshine.)

‘the size of the application site, the number of properties proposed, the limited outlook
and amenity space of both the proposed dwellings and the flats and that in turn the
proposed flats overlook the dwellings then this proposal constitutes over-development
and its amenity would be severely undermined The site also has little amenity area
associated with the development.’

(With regard to the number of properties on the size of site, and the overdevelopment issue, the
Applicant believes these points are fully addressed in the previous responses above. The amenity
space available to the dwellings and flats has also been discussed above. The rear flats directly
overlook the hard landscaped courtyard to the south, and not directly over the roofs of the
dwellings. The privacy issue has also been dealt with previously, therefore the Applicant believes
these specific comments above to be an incorrect or overly negative interpretation of the policies.

With regard to the limited outlook, this is accepted by the Applicant to an extent due to the nature
of the backiand courtyard development layout. However the Applicant’s Supporting Report
referred to this issue in relation to the overall benefit of the proposals.

The Applicant’s view previously expressed is that the house units are mainly designed to suit
elderly or infirm people looking for an accessible single bedroom flat close to the town centre.
They are likely to have less regard for distant views and large private open space to maintain,
than the benefits described above.

See following extract from the Applicant's Report page 15 on this general issue overleaf, which
Jjustifies sufficient amenity and outlook for the likely requirements of the prospective residents)



Page 15

7. Response to Planning Department concerns regarding ‘amenity’

Concerns were naturally raised regarding the amenity for the occupants of the new flats, mainly due
to the proximity of taller buildings surrounding the site, and the existence of commercial sheds
adjacent to the site at the rear of No. 102 West Princes Street.

There is also an issue regarding any change to the amenity of existing neighbouring properties
around the site caused by the proposals.

Firstly, addressing the amenity of existing neighbours, the Application proposals immediately
improve the visual amenity of the numerous properties which have an aerial view of the
development. See the ‘before and after’ view photomontages below, to visualise that the existing
eyesore of dilapidated commercial sheds will be replaced by a new, attractive courtyard
development with good quality materials, designed sympathetically in relation to the historical
character of the surrounding built environment.

Also, the environmental amenity of neighbouring properties during working hours will improve,
because the current noise created by the existing commercial / vehicular activities will be removed
from the site. And as discussed within previous sections of this report, the amenity value of daylight
and sunlight for neighbours will be unaffected, and the required privacy standards will be satisfied.

Secondly, the amenity of the new properties has to be considered. In terms of site openness there
are certainly higher buildings surrounding the new dwellings, and views and outlook are limited. The
site layout mitigates against this problem by locating the new apartment windows to afford the best
aspect possible.

The three single storey flats face west/south west directly over an open back garden, with upper
views of sky and daylight above the 2 metre boundary wall. Lower views are of the landscaped
courtyard with planting growing against the wall. The two flats to the north face south with views of
the rear of the street properties. However there are gap views south and West to the street, and
upper sky views and daylight over neighbouring roofscape, which is at least 18 metres distance.

All flats have a direct view into the high quality, communal landscaped courtyard. This is available as
a semi-private community resource for residents to sit out in good weather, encouraging a
community spirit in this housing group. Although mainstream housing has a higher degree of open
space and outlook, the targeted residents for these specifically designed one-bedroom flats are not
likely to place such a high value on these aspects. In addition the issues of daylight, sunlight and
privacy have been demonstrated as satisfactory in previous sections.

Concerns were expressed about the unpleasant view of the commercial sheds situated directly to
the East, within the rear of No. 102 West Princes Street. The design takes account of this, and there
is no direct facing view of the sheds from any apartment window. There are partial views from the
three single storey flats, but all flats have a substantially less direct view of the sheds in comparison
with several existing flats on the street. See drawing numbers GB/A/02 and 03 on the previous page
for demonstration of the above comments. We believe therefore that, on balance, the ‘amenity’
appropriate for this type of courtyard development is satisfactory.




Page 16

Applicant’s conclusions on Planning Services reasoning for Refusal:-

1. The Applicant in his Application used and referred to Council policies for
development in formulating and supporting the Proposals, and believed in essence
that they comply. However the Planning Department have also referred to those
same policies to justify a Refusal of the Application. The Applicant believes it is
therefore a matter of difference of opinion and judgement on specific regulation that
is at issue.

2. The Applicant has provided a Supporting Report (Scheduled Document number 5 in
the Review) which covers not only regulatory policy, but also the identifies
community need, community support and the lack of objectors (one only), and also
refers to National government’s recommendations for innovative solutions to housing
need. The Applicant as a result believes there is an overall benefit to the community
in providing such a development in this location.

3. This is an Application for Planning in Principle. The Applicant’'s Supporting Report
and subsequent correspondence throughout has made requests to work with the
Council Officers in working up a proposal that is acceptable to the Council, and he
continues to offer to do so.

4. The actual Refusal Notice dated 18" February provides reasons for refusal, but
these are a summary of the above Delegated Report extracts, and so have not been
referred to by The Applicant in this Review. All the points for refusal in the Refusal
Notice have been discussed above. A copy of the Refusal Notice is provided in the
Scheduled Documents enclosed for reference.




Page 17

Notice of Review
— Application
number
09/01417/PPP

Document No. 2

Applicant’s Report on the

level of community support
for the proposals, extracted
from the Supporting Report

R SRl A AN R R SRR A SRS e iy Y]




Page 18

The Applicant has encountered nothing but support from neighbouring people
and businesses, and other local residents who are aware of the proposals.

The local Community Council have examined the proposals and their Secretary
has reported to the Applicant that they support the proposals. This is because
they have knowledge of many local elderly and infirm people who may be
looking to downsize from larger properties to a smaller, easily maintained flat,
close to the centre of town and on a flat barrier-free route to public transport,
shops and community facilities.

The site and layout of these proposed flats (designed for accessibility and to
accommodate mobility scooters at ground level) meet the above
requirements, and provide a quiet cul-de-sac semi-private courtyard
development. This will encourage personal community contact, and shared
external neighbour space which does not directly face a busy street.

As part of the Planning Application process 56 neighbouring properties were
notified and there was only one objection on a broad range of issues, many of
which are not relevant to the detail of the Application. The objector had not
had the opportunity to see the Applicant’s Supporting Report at that time.

The Applicant’s Supporting Report issued during the Planning Application
period referred to the above community support in summary — see page 19,
part 9, extracted from this report overleaf.




-q

Page 19

9. Statement on local community support and objections

The Applicant has received supportive feegback from neighbours notified. Several have visited the
shop and have viewed drawing No. GB/A/8%, and are supportive of this type of development. One
has written a letter to the Council expressing their support.The Community Council have looked at
this Application and their Secretary has reported to the Applicant that they fully support this
proposal, and confirm there is a need for this type of housing in this community.

We have identified only one letter of objection on the Council online Application file (this appears
twice — one as a letter, and the same objection as an email ) despite over 50 neighbour notifications
being issued. This single objection covers a wide range of issues, and we believe most of these
concerns are demonstrated as satisfied within this report.

10. Examples of housing elsewhere, supported by national government
which encourages innovation and quality

Both UK National government and local councils encourage innovation and high quality in finding
housing solutions for community need.

We believe having identified a community housing need, that we have been innovative in creating a
satisfactory solution to meeting this need. Two recent examples of housing in Harlow and Cambridge
which have won Awards, are unusual in providing housing in which high density courtyard forms,
with homes in close proximity, are acceptable through good design which respects amenity. These
examples do not comply with current overlooking and privacy distances, but have been approved
and are popular with occupants. Their architecture and materials are appropriate to their location.
The UK national government at Minister level, and the Commission for Architecture and the Built
Environment have encouraged all Councils in the UK to follow these examples.

The Application proposals represent such courtyard designs, with close proximity to other dwellings,

but complying wit_h__th_e Regulations as explained in th

e R

is report.

0

Newhall, Harlow

19




Page 20

e A S
SR AR

Notice of Review
— Application
number
09/01417/PPP

Document No. 3

Applicant’s Record of requests
made to Planning Services for
specific written objections to
respond to and amend the
proposals




Page 21

The Applicant has consistently throughout both the pre-application discussions
and the Planning Application process, requested feedback from Planning
Services regarding any specific issues of Council Planning policy which would
affect the proposals, so that the proposals could be amended if required to
meet Council requirements.

During five months of pre-application discussions the only two issues raised in
that period verbally at a meeting, by Planning Services were regarding
overlooking (privacy), and overshadowing (sunlight / daylight penetration into
the site). The Applicant sent back by return (and received no subsequent
comment), responses to these issues which have many months later
subsequently been accepted as satisfactory in the Refusal Notice*. This is not
surprising as both pertinent issues in the proposals comply with industry
accepted, national Government, and Local Plan policies. The Applicant had
received no final indication verbally or in writing of the likelihood of the
proposals being acceptable or not by the 17 September 2009, and therefore
applied for Planning Permission in Principle on that date.

Following this the Applicant and his Agent had not been contacted regarding
the Application by the 3" November 2009, almost seven weeks into what
should be a two-month process. On calling Planning Services that day the
Applicant’s Agent was advised that the Application was to be refused on the
basis of overdevelopment. The Agent requested a meeting to discuss the
proposals prior to a decision, and this was held on the 12™ November 2009,
when Planning Services were made aware of detailed reasoning for the
proposals, and requested supporting evidence (which was sent as a Report a
few days later)

Between that date up until the date of Refusal 14 weeks later on the 18"
February 2010, neither the Applicant or Agent were contacted by Planning
Services to discuss that supporting evidence.

The Applicant contacted Planning Services by phone and email at times to offer
to meet and discuss any further concerns, and to offer to amend the proposals
if necessary. Finally the Planning Services Report of handling was sent to the

Agent on the 18" February 2010, the same day as the Application was Refused.




Page 22

(See copies below of correspondence highlighting requests for discussion by
the Applicant)

The Applicant is therefore disappointed that there has been no opportunity to
discuss the proposals with a view to considering potential amendments to
meet Council requirements.

*Planning Services have accepted in their Report of handling that privacy
issues and sunlight / daylight penetration into the site are satisfied, but then
contradict this statement by saying that ‘the privacy of any prospective
residents would be adversely affected’. — how can this argument be justified
when they have previously stated the privacy issue is satisfied ?




i

l 17-11-2009 / GB/A/L3

Planning Department
Development Services
Argyll and Bute Council
Blairvadach

Near Helensburgh

G84 8ND

Dear Sirs,

Planning Application Reference —09/01417/PPP

Subject;- 112 West PrincesStreet, Helensburgh, G84 8XD

Proposed re-development of commercial premises at above site :-

We confirm having requested a meeting on the 3™ November 2009 to discuss any issues arising
from the Application made on the 18" September 2009.

Following your agreement, and the site meeting with your Ms. S Davies and Ms. S Glen on the
12 November, thank you for the specific comments made about your concerns. This has
assisted us in addressing these points in more detail.

We also agreed that we would provide evidence of our justification of the proposals for your
consideration. We therefore enclose our report on our responses to your concerns, along with a
drawing showing an outline sketch option for five flats, as tabled at the meeting.

As agreed you will require a week or two following submission of this additional information to
determine the Application. Although the target determination date is the 18 November 2009, the
Applicant and yourselves agreed to this timescale.

As we are now into the 27™ week of dialogue about these proposals including the pre-application
discussions, we would appreciate some urgency on arriving at a decisionfWe are available at

short notice to discuss any further queries or supply more additional information, to work with
you to identify a solution acceptable to the Council.

Please advise if this is required to assist you with assessing the proposals.

Yours Faithfully.

Mr. J. Black
For JB DesignConsult Limited
Agent for Mr. G. Burgess, Applicant.

Encl.- Report on responses to Planning Concerns- 14/11/09, + copy drawing Number GB/A/02
c.c. Mr. G. Burgess + copy encl.




Webmail Page 1 of 1
: Page 24 g
Subject: RE: 112 West Princes Street - Application ref. 09/01417/PPP
Delivery-Date: Wednesday, December 16, 2009 3:30 PM
From: "Glen, Stephanie" <Stephanie.Glen@argyll-bute.gov.uk>
To: 'info@jb-designconsult.co.uk’ <info@jb-designconsult.co.uk>
Dear Mr Black
I am still working on your report. I apologise for the time taken, but I
have an awful lot of work on at the moment since it is just myself and a
part time officer dealing with all of the applications. You have submitted
ample information and it Jjust takes time to go through all of the points
that you have raised in your supporting documentation. I aim to try an work
solely on your application next week, but it will be the beginning of
January before you will get a decision.
I realise that this is longer than anticipated and I again apologise for the
delay.
Regards
Stephanie
————— Criginal Message-----
From: info@jb-designconsult.co.uk [mailto:infoljb-designconsult.co.uk]
Sent: 14 December 2009 10:02
To: Glen, Stephanie
Subject: 112 West Princes Street -~ Application ref., 09/01417/PPP
. Dear Ms.Glen,
J I confirm my call to you on the 2nd December fenquiring about the
" progress of the above Application varidared onl the 18th September
2009. You advised you were very busy and required a further two weeks
to complete your report, which I reported to the Applicant. He has
asked me to check with you on the current situation.
As previously advised we can meet to discuss any further concerns or
matters required to enable the proposals to be acceptable to the
Council. Please let us know the position as soon as possible.
Regards,
Joe Black
Managing Director
JB DesignConsult Limited
10 Kenilworth Avenue
Helensburgh G84 7JR
tel : 0754 532 5806
www . jb-designconsult.co.uk
email : info@jb-designconsult.co.uk
Privileged/Confidential Information may be contained in this message. If you
are not the addressee indicated in this message (or responsible for delivery
of the message to such person), you may not disclose, copy or deliver this
message to anyone and any action taken or omitted to be taken in reliance on
it, is prohibited and may be unlawful.
In such case, you should destroy this message and kindly notify the sender
by reply email. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message
that do not relate to the official business of Argyll and Bute Council shall
be understood as neither given nor endorsed by it.
All communications sent to or from Argyll and Bute Council may be subject to
recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant legislation.
This email has been scanned for viruses, vandals and malicious content.
https://webmail.123domainnames.co.uk/webmail/message.php5?id=16&mid=3bad0a... 26/02/2010




- Webmail Page 25

Page 1 of 2

Subject: Re: 112 West Princes Street - Application ref. 09/01417/PPP

E)e!ivery-Date: Friday, January 15, 2010 11:03 AM l
From: info@jb-designconsult.co.uk

To: Stephanie.Glen@argyll-bute.gov.uk

CC: Sandra.Davies@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Dear Ms. Glen,

I confirm my call yesterday regarding the progress of this Application. You
advised that although you had managed to prepare most of your report prior
to Christmas, you have not had a chance to complete it yet. You anticipated
you could look at it again today, and get back to me hopefully next week.

I informed the Applicant Mr., Burgess and although he understands that your
office is apparently understaffed, he is becoming frustrated with the time
taken to assess this Application.

Following our site meeting with yourself and Ms.Davies on the 12th November
2009, Ms. Davies anticipated from receipt of our further information, you
would require two weeks to let us know the position. We provide that further
information on the 18th November. We are now approaching four months into
the Application process, following a period of 19 weeks of pre-application
discussions in which we received little guidance on your specific
objections.

Either the proposals are acceptable and a Permission should be granted, or
there are specific areas of council policy, planning laws or design that you
may have comments on so that we can respond.

Mr.Burgess requests if you can now advise on the position.

Regards,

Joe Black

Managing Director

JB DesignConsult Limited

10 Kenilworth Avenue

Helensburgh G84 7JR

tel : 0754 532 5806

www ., jb~designconsult.co.uk

email : info@jb-designconsult.co.uk




------ Forwarded Message Page 26

From: <info@jb-designconsult.co.uk>

Date: Friday, January 22, 2010 4:17 PM f

To: <planning.hqlargyIi-bute.gov.uk

Subject: Fw: 112 West Princes Street - Application ref. 08/01417/pPP

To Head of Planning,
Argyll and Bute Council,

Dear Sirs,

Planning Application Ref. 09/01417/PPP - 112 West Princes Street,
Helensburgh T

As agent for the above Application, T write on the Applicant's behalf to
request your assistance in finalising the Application process which in
this

> instance has now entered the fifth month of what is normally a two month
> process.

> We have been advised that the reason for the delay is due to staff
shortage.

> Can you therefore please assist by increasing resources to speed up the
> process ?

VVVVYVYVVYVYVYVYVYV VIV

> We have tried to get an indication of the likely timing on this, and I
have

> forwarded the relevant email correspondence. I have had no response to
date

regarding my email sent last Friday.

Please advise if you can assist.
Thanks in anticipation.

Yours Faithfully,

Joe Black

Managing Director

JB DesignConsult Limited

10 Kenilworth Avenue

Helensburgh G84~7JR

tel : 0754 532 5806

www . jb~designconsult.co.uk

email info@ib-designconsult.co.uk

TVVVVVVVYYVYVVYYVY Y

. Subject: Fw: 112 West Princes Street - Application ref, 09/01417/PPP
E Delivery-Date: Thursday, January 28, 2010 12:00 PM
From: info@jb-designcansult.co.uk
To: beth.connelly@argyli-bute.gov.uk

Dear Ms, Connelly,

I confirm your telephone message on Friday last, confirming your office’s
receipt of the email below.

As I have still heard nothing from anyone in the Planning Department, can
you confirm that you sent the email on, and if any of the receiving parties
may be out of their office this week ?

Thanks,

Joe Black

JB DesignConsult,

Agent for the Applicant

Subject: FW: 112 West Princes Street - Application ref. 09/01417/PPP
Delivery-Date: Friday, January 29, 2010 9:25 AM

From: "Connelly, Beth" <Beth.Connelly@argy!l-bute.gov.uk>

To: info@jb-designconsuit.co.uk

Good morning Mr Black, please see below the email that I forwarded to Howard
Young last Friday.

Beth

~~~~~ Original Message——-—-~-

From: Connelly, Beth On Behalf Of planning.hg

Sent: 22 January 2010 16:40

To: Young, Howard

Cc: Gilmour, Angus

Subject: FW: 112 West Princes Street — Application ref. 09/01417/PPP
Hi Howard, please find below an email for your attention.

Thanks

Beth




. Webmail Page 27 Page 1 of 1

Subject: 112 West Princes Street - Application Number 09/01417/PPP
_[-?Elivery-Date: Friday, January 29, 2010 10:41 AM l

From: info@le—::lesngnconsult.co.uk

To: Stephanie.Glen@argyli-bute.gov.uk

Dear Ms.Glen,

I confirm my call to you this morning as we have heard nothing from the
Planning Department regarding the progress of the application since I last
called on the 15th January.

You advised your report recommends refusal on the basis of
'overdevelopment', and this is now with Mr. Young for signing.

I confirm that we have consistently requested in our correspondence for any
specific comments you may have, so that we could respond to provide a
solution acceptable to the Council. Although ‘overdevelopment' was first
raised at our meeting on the 12th November, we provided justification in our
further information. We should therefore be given the opportunity to address
this specific reason for refusal, prior to you making a decision.

Could you please advise the calculations justifying 'overdevelopment' so
that I can discuss this with the Applicant for consideration and possible
amendment of the proposals.

Regards,

Joe Black

Managing Director

JB DesignConsult Limited

10 Kenilworth Avenue

Helensburgh G84 7JR

tel : 0754 532 5806
www.jb-designconsult.co.uk

email : info@jb-designconsult.co.uk

https://webmail.123domainnames.co.uk/wehmail/messace nhns2id=1188mid=RAe1n 20/01 /3010




, Webmail Page 28 Page 1 of 2

Subject: RE: 112 West Princes Street - Application Number 09/01417/PPP R
Delivery-Date: Thursday, February 18, 2010 3.:25 PM [
From: "Glen, Stephanie" <Stephanie.Glen@argyll-bute.gov.uk>

To: 'info@jb-designconsult.co.uk' <info@jb-designconsult.co.uk>

Attachments: 1417.ROH.doc (124.5 KB)

Dear Mr Black

I apologise for not getting back to you sooner. Please find attached my
report of handling which details the reasons why we consider the site to be
overdevelopment.

I hope this is of help.

Regaxrds

Stephanie

————— Original Message-----—

From: info@ib-designconsult.co.uk [mailto:infoljb-designconsult.co.uk]
I sent: 16 February 2010 14:38 [

Y To: Glen, Stephanie v
Subject: Fw: 112 West Princes Street - Application Number 09/01417/PPP

Dear Ms.Glen,

I forward below my email sent on the 29th January 2010 as I have had no
response.

Can you now confirm the definition in your report of ‘'overdevelopment' with
respect to this application so that we can look at an option which will not
be considered to be over~developed?

Joe Black

Managing Director

JB DesignConsult Limited

10 Kenilworth Avenue

Helensburgh G84 7JR

tel : 0754 532 5806
www.jb~designconsult.co.uk

email : info@jb-designconsult.co.uk

~~~~~~ Forwarded Message
From: <info@jb-designconsult.co.uk>
Date: Friday, January 29, 2010 10:41 AM
To: <Stephanie.Glen@argyll-bute.gov.uk>
Subject: 112 West Princes Street - Application Number 09/01417/PPP

>
>
>
>
>
> Dear Ms.Glen,

> T confirm my call to you this morning as we have heard nothing from the

> Planning Department regarding the progress of the application since I last
> called on the 15th January.

> You advised your report recommends refusal on the basis of

> ‘overdevelopment', and this is now with Mr. Young for signing.

> I confirm that we have consistently requested in our correspondence for
any

> specific comments you may have, so that we could respond to provide a

> solution acceptable to the Council. Although 'overdevelopment' was first

> raised at our meeting on the 12th November, we provided justification in

our
> further information. We should therefore be given the opportunity to
address

> this specific reason for refusal, prior to you making a decision.

> Could you please advise the calculations justifying 'overdevelopment' so
> that I can discuss this with the Applicant for consideration and possible
> amendment of the proposals.

>

> Regards,

>

> Joe Black

> Managing Director

httns://webmail.123domainnames.co.uk/webmail/message.oho5?id=24&mid=55438cf... 26/02/2010




Page 29

R T B S P R T S S B i

Notice of Review
— Application
number
09/01417/PPP

iR or St i s it Al St SRR S s e S e e

Document No. 4

PRssrs S n as A e SR S s S S G e e e

Copy of original Planning
Application and Drawing No.
GB/A/01 submitted on 17th
September 2009, and Council
letter of receipt and
Validation, for reference

[eas e st iR e N A SRS S e e B G s o




| rgyll _ Planning Reference No:
@' Ute f . ; ! 3 *C o & Application Type
COUNCIL ‘ f s n Pian. National | Major | Local

Slse?se send your completed application to: Planning Services, Dalriada House, Lochneli Street, Lochgilphead, PA31

PRINCIPLE

The undernoted applicant hereby makes application for planning permission in principle for the development on this form and z
on the accompanying plans. .

This form should not be used for applications for Mineral Consent, Listed Building Consent, Conservation Area Consent,

Advertisement Consent, Certificates of Lawfulness or Prior Notification as separate application forms are available for these.

1(a) Applicant (IN BL(ZCK CAPITALS) i 1(b) Agent (see note 1)
Full Name YO CX . BRURGKS3S ... FUINBITIE oo eees e ea e eee e eer s eaen
Address Te. T 0C.BURGESS + 55N | Address oo JB_DESIGNCONSULY LT
e N, ST PRINGES STRRET, | 10 KENILWORTH AVENUE
o 5 L HECENSEURGH GEETIR
e’ e ma\ﬁggug% .................................................................. T,07545325806 ................
Post Code Gtgq— ........ Xb .............................. Post Code e s
e-mail e e et et e-mail {—.V\fa @J (’-"J‘QS\' neansvll <o ok

Tel No e et e e v ees e e et sne it s te s et eree e e TEINO et e enraean

2. Description of Proposed Development (see note 2)

ChANGE. OF USE. BREM. SHo,/GetasE. . To. BWELUNG HouseS (5H0)

3. Location of the land to which the development relates (see note 3)
(A) Postal address of development

2 WEST PRyNGES STREET | wE\SNSBVR G . G8Y 8XD .

4. SitefFloor area (complete as appropriate) (see note 4)
Proposed site arengf the development (site edged red - taking account of the definition in the notes for guidance)

5. Demolition (see note 5)
Will any buildings or structures be demolished in connection with the proposed development?

Yes \A No []

If YES, identify the building(s) to be demolished on the site plan.

8. Is a claim of locational need or special circumstances being made (see note 6)

(A) Is a claim of locational need being made (as in the notes for guidance?) If YES, please give details in a covering
statement. Yes D No

(B) Is a claim of special circumstances being made, after reference to the accompanying notes for guidance,
including croft or farm diversification. if YES, please give details in a covering statement  Yes D No

Ay ;
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION |

Jul 09




Page 31

7. Development affecting a Registered Croft (see note 7)
Does the site form part of a registered croft? Yes ] No E/
If s, please supply the croft registration number/reference

Has the croft been the subject of an operational plan approved or submitted to the Crofter Commission
If YES, please supply a copy Yes [ ] No

Is there an existing croft dwellinghouse(s) within the boundary of the croft? Yes D No D
If YES, please show the position of the dwellinghouse(s) on the separate plan of the croft boundary

8. Access Arrangements (see note 8)
No change[}”" New vehicular access ] Existing vehicular access to be used B/
Existing vehicular access to be altered/improved D Separate pedestrian access proposed D

9. Off-site access/road improvements (see note 9)

Is it intended to provide “off-site” access/road inﬁprovements? Yes [ ] No {Q/
I YES, please give a description of the improvements proposed, which should be included on the application site edged
TEU ottt ettt s et b1 a et b oS ettt ea e ee e oo et e e e e e s e s et et et oo ee e

10. Drainage Arrangements (tick one box only) (see note 10)
Connection to existing public sewer v
Connection to existing private sewer/septic tank D Single septic tank or biodisc proposed D
Two or more septic tanks or biodiscs proposed D Other type of private system (specify on plans) E]
Please specify type of outfall for septic tank(s) Or BIOGISEIS) ......vvivevieiriie oo eee e ee et

11. Water supply arrangements (tick one box only) {see note 11)
Connection to existing public main [} Proposed connection to public main ~ [_]
Existing private supply {o be used D Proposed private supply ]:]

Please identify the proposed private water supply source, any proposed pipes and storage arrangements on the Site Plan
within the site edged in red.

12. Are any trees to be cleared from the site? (see note 12)
Not Applicable @?es[] No D If YES, show details of trees to be retained/felled/replanted on Site Plan.

APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION IN PRINCIPLE

Jul 08




1
k]
i

Page 32

THIS SECTICN MUST BE COMPLETED IN EVERY CASE

Ownership Certificates Under Regulation 15(2) of The Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008

Does the land or any part of the land to which this application relates constitute or form part of an
agricultural holding (see note (b) overleaf) YES | No B

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT 21 DAYS BEFORE THE DATE OF THE APPLICATION : (Tick one box only)

“*No person (other than the apphcant) was the owner of any ofthe land to whlch the apphcatzon P @ PSS
orelate oranagncultural“tenant:’ G e R R o

The ‘applicant DOES NOT OWN all’ the iand rnvolved in the applrcatron sxte but has glven a copy L ,Efv":
- of-the Tequisite: Regulatxon 15(1) Notice fo ‘the: ‘owner(s) (see note ‘(a) -overieaf) or agricultural. - D g

- jtenant (see note (b) overieaf) of any part of the apphcatron sxte who are hsfed below in Sectron Al
he.applrcent has ‘been unable to notrfy ai[ owners/ agncultural tenants of the: applxcatron srte, S e P
fter havmg taken the measures detarled in. SeotronBto |dentrfy them R : D ]

Those Notified in terms of Regulation 15(3) of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)

s (Scotland) Regulations 2008 are:

SECTION A
Name of Owner/
Agricultural Tenant Address Date Notified

Details of the measures taken to identify notifiable parties in terms of Regulation 15(3) of the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 who the applicant has been unable t notify under
Regulation 15(1) of said Regulations:

SECTION B

DECLARATION

;L"i hereby certify that I;the. apphcant/apphcant s-agent, have given correct and complete infrmation and- ngen the reqursrte E
_-j‘notrces tor &ll parties who havé ‘a-notifiable interest.in‘terms of: Regulatxon 15(1) of The Town and Country Plannmg )
- nt Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulatxons 2008 I : R

sionED_f

";offence and hable on summary convrctlon to a ﬂne not exceedmg levei 5 on the standard soale

Jul 09




Page 33

Argyll and Bute Council
Combhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid

Development Services
Director: George Harper

Planning Officer e-mail address: Dalriada House, Lochnell Street, Lochgilphead, PA31 8ST
Tel: (01546 ) 604840

Our Ref: 09/01417/PPP Fax(01546) 604522
Your Ref:

' Ree's 22/09/0>
24 September 2009 46

Mr G Burgess

JB Design Consult Limited
10 Kenilworth Avenue
Helensburgh

G84 74R

Dear Sir/ Madam

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)
APPLICANT: Mr G Burgess

PROPOSAL: Outline Planning Permission for the erection of 5no dwellinghouses.
SITE ADDRESS: 112 West Princes Street Helensburgh Argyll And Bute G84 8XD

I acknowledge receipt of your application which was received on 18th September 2009, together
with the planning fee of £290 . Further to checkmg your application it has been found to be valid
on receipt and has now been registered.

it should be noted that in the case where the application will required to be advertised in
accordance with Regulation 20 of the Town and Country Planning (Charges for Publication of
Notices) (Scotland) Regulations 2009 the Council are legally obliged to charde the actual cost of
the advert and invoice you accordingly. If you have already paid a sum towards your advert fee
the Council will refund the difference or invoice for the outstanding amount or the actual amount if
you have paid no fee towards an advert. In terms of Regulation 20 you will have 21 days to pay the
outstanding balance. If the outstanding balance is not paid with the 21 days the Council cannot
issue a decision on your application and will treat it as withdrawn and start proceedings to recover
the actual costs.

Monitoring of advert fees has shown that the costs of adverts can range from £50.00 to £650.00
(including VAT) depending on the number of adverts in any given week or the paper used. These
charges are outwith the control of the council as they are set by individual papers. In order to try
and keep costs to a minimum, the Council is now advertising planning applications fortnightly in an
- attempt to avoid any individual being faced with a £650.00 bill, although this cannot be guaranteed.

Your application reference number is 09/01417/PPP which should be quoted in all communications
with the Council. Please note that for the purpose of the planning decision notice, the description
of your apphcatton will be as described in the “proposal’ above. If you disagree with this
description in any way, please do not hesitate to contact the Area Office in order for any changes
to be made. Contact should be made within 5 working days of this letter to allow for any changes
to be made, or it will be assumed that you accept the application description.

if you have not received a formal decision by 18th November 2009 and would wish a review info
_the non determination of your application you should contact Nigel Stewart, Director of Corporate
Services, Argyll and Bute Council, Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8ST. “




e Page 34

If this situation does arise, | would suggest that you get in touch with the relevant area planning
office to discuss the application as a review may not be necessary. If you wish to discuss the
application while it is with the Council, please contact the area office on 01436 658882.

If you wish to view the progress of this or any other application you can do so by visiting the
Council's Website at www.argyll-bute.gov.uk.

In addition to this facility the public can submit an application electronically by visiting the Scottish

Government Website at www.eplanning@scotland.gsi.gov.uk. Your application will then be
electronically forwarded to Argyll and Bute Council for processing.

Yours faithfully

C

Beth Connelly
Senior Technician e




4 . b
I
.

Di:ainage and water supplies %/"

From/ to development connected to, WEST PR; NC ES STR EET

. Existing street connections

| Page 35 |
:t_- ' - ‘ !
. | | . |
b L8 - L !
e < |
‘, H § o . { !:
.1 ke ] | | N il
,,,,,,, i
[ * =1
| Fia
| Pils
1 z & 1 ‘
|
- i ;
| i
i i @
; o
| R
: i
; 1
= L
SR ; 5’ ]
™ i g
f i
| s
i
i
i
1
i
i
s
|

G O} :
590118 " k , sy

SCOTT (

> |
- ——
g9z
S
Q
Masonic
Hall

SITE PLAN 1:500




| Page 36
Ity o : a
| | |8 == | |
o : \J | ! D |
o e e
i I RN
| P
. i - y co?
§ i o f
; F i y
e -
i ;|8 ] Existing{Buildings to be demolisl'sed
uN ar b
! § / / ' % " 1
i TR
= RS A - h:' i
propprRR— ; ;O,; ] ‘“l / '.a:‘a‘ rl
—F o § :
T i I —
; ! | /ﬂ/"i/{}2
! ; : év
] i - i / l .
oy | 114 to o 90 8
N i 1 11 112 108 106 100 ‘
/ — —— — l wf""":"}” :
, Drainage and water supplies \/’,
From/ to development connected to, WEST PRiNC ES STREET
N _ Existing street connections
TN T T T T T T e e T T T T |
=7 | o L
1‘1! i Ga {9 o . g@%‘
o ;—-‘ ! L
2R s S 3
IR | ® a4 x
of | | = SCOTT ¢
, i
i . A

SITE PLAN 1:500




wooy6ee
wirygee

682606m

§82606m

682600m

682600m

682500m |-

682500m

682406m

682406m

y
g
g

wirEZe

o

LOCATION PLAN 1:1250

Proposed Change of Use
And re-development
112 West Princes Street
Helensburgh G84 8ND
Location and Site plans
September 2009

Scale 1:1250, 1:500

Drawing Number GB/A/01




Page 38

Notice of Review

— Application
number
09/01417/PPP

Document No. 5

Copy of Applicant’s
Supporting Report, further
Drawing No. GB/A/02, and
covering letter submitted on
17th November 2009, for
reference




Page 39

17-11-2009 / GB/A/L3
Planning Department
Development Services
Argyll and Bute Council
Blairvadach

Near Helensburgh

G84 §ND

Dear Sirs,

Planning Application Reference — 09/01417/PPP

Subject;- 112 West PrincesStreet, Helensburgh, G84 8XD

Proposed re-development of commercial premises at above site :-

We confirm having requested a meeting on the 3™ November 2009 to discuss any issues arising
from the Application made on the 18% September 2009.

Following your agreement, and the site meeting with your Ms. S Davies and Ms. S Glen on the
12" November, thank you for the specific comments made about your concerns. This has
assisted us in addressing these points in more detail.

We also agreed that we would provide evidence of our justification of the proposals for your
consideration. We therefore enclose our report on our responses to your concerns, along with a
drawing showing an outline sketch option for five flats, as tabled at the meeting.

As agreed you will require a week or two following submission of this additional information to
determine the Application. Although the target determination date is the 18 November 2009, the
Applicant and yourselves agreed to this timescale.

As we are now into the 27" week of dialogue about these proposals including the pre-application
discussions, we would appreciate some urgency on arriving at a decision. We are available at
short notice to discuss any further queries or supply more additional information, to work with
you to identify a solution acceptable to the Council.

Please advise if this is required to assist you with assessing the proposals.

Yours Faithfully.

Mr. J. Black
For JB DesignConsult Limited
Agent for Mr. G. Burgess, Applicant.

Encl.- Report on responses to Planning Concerns- 14/11/09, + copy drawing Number GB/A/02
c.c. Mr. G. Burgess + copy encl.




Page 40

Argyll and Bute Council Planning Application - reference number 09/01417/PPP
Applicant: Mr. G. Burgess, proprietor of the existing premises
Proposal : Outline Planning Permission for the erection of 5 no. dwelling houses

Site address: 112 West Princes Street, Helensburgh G84 8XD

Report by the Applicant in response to concerns raised by the Council
Planning Department during pre-application and post-application discussions

Prepared by the Applicant’s Agent, JB DesignConsult Ltd.

14" November 2009

Contents:‘

Reason for the Application =T Lo T
Local Plan and national Policies on which the proposals are based
Response to Planning Department concerns regarding ‘backlands development’
Response to Planning Department concerns on ‘overdevelopment’
Response to Planning Department concerns on ‘overlooking’
Response to Planning Department concerns on ‘daylighting’
Response to Planning Department concerns on ‘amenity’
Statement on proposed architectural design and materials.
Statement on local community support, and objections.
. Examples of housing elsewhere, supported by UK national government, which encourages
innovation and novelty in the delivery of appropriate housing solutions for communities.
11. Conclusion.

W N WU EWNE

Y
o




Page 41

1. Reason for the Application

The Applicant Mr. Gordon Burgess is the proprietor of the long established family decorating
business which operates on the site. Part of the site is leased out and operates as a car repair
business. Most of the out-buildings to the rear are stores which are largely redundant.

Mr. Burgess is now in his seventies, and has at times for several years sought to sell the business to
enable his retirement. However, his attempts to sell it as a going concern, or for other commerecial
uses within the premises, have not been successful. His children live outside Scotland and have their
own established careers, therefore family succession is not an option. In the current and foreseeable
economic conditions it is unlikely that a purchaser can be found.

The location of the site is within the edge of the town centre boundary of the Local Plan, but is
mostly surrounded by residential property. The current commercial use of the rear area does not sit
well with its immediate neighbours.

In speaking to local people in the community, the Applicant identified a need for housing in this
location which would provide for the specific requirements of older residents. Nationally and locally
there is an increasing elderly population, who gradually become less physically able due to infirmity.

The location of this site is a short, level distance to all the town centre facilities and public transport.
The site can offer a choice in accommodation not generally available locally — small, purpose
designed, accessible ‘barrier free’ flats, providing an economic alternative for the elderly to live
independently for longer in the centre of their community.

The scale and layout of the proposed flats and their shared / private space provision requires a
comparatively low property maintenance cost, which will be welcome for prospective residents who
may be ‘down-sizing’ from larger properties.

Although the Application is for approval in Principle, the detailed layout of the proposals has been
developed professionally to ensure that appropriate housing of the type described can be
successfully delivered should the Application be approved.

The following sections of this report describe the reasoning behind the proposals, and address the
concerns raised by the Council Planning Department during the pre-application and application
consideration periods to date.




Page 42

2. Local Plan and national Policies on which the proposals are based

The physical characteristics of the site have been examined, and we believe following extensive
research that it is capable of providing up to five one-bedroom flats based on the local community
need identified by the Applicant, and will conform to the Council Planning Policy requirements.

Itis recognised both at national Planning level, and stated within the local Argyll and Bute Housing
Strategy, ( based on projected household composition ) that an increasingly ageing population will
require appropriate housing to suit their specific needs. Appropriately designed housing will extend
independent living time, and reduce the cost burden to the public purse of premature institutional
and hospital care. The proposals in this Application will offer an intermediate alternative to local
care home need, and can be designed to Housing Association funding standards, so that the flats
may be developed as genuine ‘affordable housing’ units, making them available to those in lower
income/savings brackets.

The layout and areas of the flats in the proposals have been developed sufficiently to ensure they
conform to the guidance of Communities Scotland ‘Housing for Varying Needs’ compliance, which is
nationally recognised as ‘best practice’ in housing design, and mandatory for Housing Association
partnership. This includes in the case of the proposed four ground floor flats, barrier free access and
the internal circulation requirements for wheelchair dependant people. The proposed flats are all
capable of satisfying Building Control standards for the specific ‘special needs’ requirements within
dwellings. Particularly they can accommodate storage for wheelchairs and mobility scooters.

The proposals are based on providing five one-bedroom flats within the town centre boundary of
the Local Plan. In accordance with the Local Plan Policy LP TRAN 6 (page 87), zero off- street parking
provision is permitted. See an extract from the Plan (page 118) below, which confirms the provision.
The proposals provide an opportunity to maximise the benefit of the site attributes for the type of
residential accommodation identified as a need within the local community.

As discussed and agreed with the Planning Department, the Council cannot control prospective
purchasers of the flats to be elderly and possibly infirm. Therefore there is a legitimate concern over
younger couples with cars occupying the flats and putting pressure on street parking capacity in this
location. However we believe the location and type of single bedroom accommodation provided is
unlikely to be attractive to young active couples, particularly if they have, or may be planning to
have a young family. The exception may be younger lower income, single person / couples seeking a
first foot on the housing ladder. We believe they are less likely to own a car, and may be attracted to
the easy accessibility of the town centre for work, public transport to get to work elsewhere, or they
may use bicycles for personal transport. This is particularly relevant for the flat at first floor level, but
should the lower than average property cost of the proposed flats assist such a young person /
couple to take a first step in house ownership, before selling to move to a larger home, this is
another potential community choice benefit of the proposalis.

The scale of the proposed dwellings and their terraced design produces a very economic
construction cost. This, along with associated low energy running costs, complies with national
government, and local council targets to meet required reductions in the carbon footprint of new
development, and to achieve long term sustainability objectives. The positive discrimination in the
proposals against car park provision assists with energy reduction targets, in line with Council policy.




2

-

Page 43

| Policy LP TRAN 5

|

| Policy LP TRAN 6 l

] Off site highway improvements —}

‘ Vehicle Parking Provision I

Where  development proposals  will
significantly increase vehicular or
pedestrian traffic on substandard private or
public approach roads, then developments
wiil be required to contribute
proportionately to improvements to an
agreed section of the public or private road
network.

Justification

It can be appropriate in some circumstances to
require a development to contribute to
improvements to the public road approaching a
development site. These circumstances
include:

¢ When in the judgement of the Planning and
Roads Authority that the development
because of is projected traffic generation, is
likely to result in unacceptable road safety
conditions, and this will consequently place
an unreasonable burden on the Roads
Authority to improve a significantly
substandard road.

+ The improvements to the public or private
road should be practical and proportionate
to the nature and scale of development
proposed; account should be taken of
existing traffic usage of the road and its
overall condition; the principle of
continuous improvement should be applied
whereby the road condition will have been
improved after the development has taken
place, notwithstanding the increased traffic.

» Where public or private road improvements
are  considered necessary for a
development to proceed, and these involve
private lfand a Section 75 Planning
Agreement may be appropriate before
planning consent is issued.

This Policy conforms to:

* SPP 17 (Planning for Transport).

» Structure and Local Plan Economic and
Social Objectives Sl 1 - a), b) and c).

e Structure Plan Policy PROP TRANS 1.

Off-street car and vehicle parking shall be
provided for development on the following
basis:

Car parking standards

(A) The car parking standards (including
disabled parking) set out in Appendix
C shall be applied to those specified

categories of development.

Tolerance of zero parking provision

(B) In the main town centres including the
caore shopping areas, zero parking
provision for Special Needs Housing
and small-scale* flatted development;

Restaurants (use class 3); hot food
takeaways; public houses; business
(use class 4)(up to 600m2 floor space)
will be permitted.

*Up to 5 units - i

Justification

SPP 17 (Planning for Transport) recommends
the use of national maximum parking standards
for new developments, these national maximum
car parking standards relate only to limited
categories and scales of development e.g. retail
development (food) and (non-food) of 1000m?
and over. They do not apply to housing
development. It is accepted that these national
maximum car parking standards can operate in
Argyll  and Bute without resulting in
unacceptable off-site parking consequences.
Accordingly, these national standards form the
basis of development in policy LP TRAN 6 and
Appendix C.

The next question to address is whether
minimum car parking standards should apply in
the context of the Argyll and Bute particularly
for those developments that are subject to
National maximum standards. Given the
essentially rural nature of Argyll and Bute and
the comrespondingly  higher levels  of
dependency on car ownership it is considered
appropriate to have minimum standards for the
majority of new developments. These minimum-
standards do not exceed the National maximum
standards and alsoc form the basis of
development in policy LP TRAN 6 and its
accompanying Appendix C. .

87

AREAS

ZERO PARKING PROVISIONS IN TOWN CENTRES. INCLUDING CORE SHOPPING

The limited categories of development that will not be expected to provide off-street car parking
on development sites in identified town centre zones (including Core Shopping Areas) are set

and Public Houses

out below :

Retail (Use Ciass 1) “Small and Medium scale {up to 1800m? gross flool
space) .

Restaurants (Use Class 3) Hot Food Takeaway | Any scale

Other Leisure Facilities (Use Class 11)

Small scale (SOOngross floorspace)

—
: ] Flatted Dwellings (for single hedfoom

Special Needs Housing (Use Class 9)

Any scale (disabled car parking may however be
required)

:Business (Use Class 4)

Small scale (up to five dwelling units Deleted: person accupation
Small and Medium scale (buildings up to 600m
footprint and gross site area up to'2 Ha.)

| Deleted: 500

118




Page 44

3. Response to Planning Department concerns regarding ‘backlands
development’

The Council Local Plan ( pages 106 - 107 , see copy extracts following this section ) specifies the
relevant policy for this type of development. The proposals can certainly be described as ‘backlands
development’, but this is not necessarily a negative issue, as the Local Plan also states.

We believe the proposals accord with the spirit of Council policy ( paragraph 11.2 on page 107 -
Local Plan) in this type of development with regard to providing additional housing within {
predominantly in our opinion ) residential areas and make good use of neglected and unused (
under-used and redundant in this case ) vacant land.

The policy further states that this type of development needs to take account of the existing
settlement character and the area’s historical development. This is justified in section 8 of this

report.

Also there is a requirement to maintain the privacy and amenity of the oribgina! property (we
interpret this to include neighbours). Compliance with these conditions is justified under sections 5

and 7 respectively in this report.

Historical precedent for residential ‘backlands development’ exists in many parts of Helensburgh.
We recognise that some of these are not necessarily well located or designed. There are three
examples located within only 30 - 70 metres of the site boundary. The sites are shown on the
following maps with relevant photographs for reference.

These all vary in dates of construction, and some do not attain current standards of design quality,
but appear to be popular and successful in the long term. This may be because the property values
are lower comparatively than street facing housing. However this offers lower income purchasers a
more affordable option in the local housing market. Similarly the Application proposals will offer this
economic benefit to satisfy what we believe to be an established need in the local community.

In view of the apparent 100% occupancy levels in these historical residential ‘backlands’
developments, we believe there is a proven long-term sustainability of this type of housing,
particularly in the immediate location of the Application site, therefore justifying the ‘backlands’
layout of the Application proposals .

The quality of design and materials in the proposals will meet the high standards demanded by both
the Council and an increasingly discerning public, and these are referred to in Section 8.

Back-land Development

111 Back-land development-can be defined
as new development behind a row or group of
existing buildings.. Access to such development
is normally gained via a separate road from that
serving the existing buildings, although joint
accesses are sometimes possible.

11.2  Back-land development can provide
additional housing within existing residential
areas and make good use of neglected and/or
unused vacant land. However, such
development needs to take account of the
existing settlement character and the area’s
historical development. It requires to be
designed to maintain the privacy and amenity of
the original property and allow for an
appropriate and safe vehicular and pedestrian
access.

11.3  Planning applications for back-land
sites should include details that clearly indicate
the siting, aspect and height of the building, the
proposed and existing accesses, and a clear,
scale plan of all adjacent roads and footpaths.




Page 45

Plan showing existing and historical Backlands development of housing within
30-70 metres of the Application site:

Two-storey flats over ground floor parking Two-storey housing dating from

behind the Library, dating from early — mid nineteenth century

the nineteen-nineties

&h N :
Medical
Centre

Thtee -storey flats.
dating from mid- late nineteenth century

( see next page for Photographs )@




Page 46

Photographs of existing and historical Backlands development of housing
within 30-70 metres of the Application site:

Two-storey flats over ground floor parking Two-storey housing dating from

behind the Library, dating from early — mid nineteenth century\l/

the nineteen-nineties

Three -storey flats

dating from mid- late nineteenth century




Page 47

4. Response to Planning Department concerns regarding ‘over-
development’

This apparent criticism has recently been expressed regarding the proposals. We assume this is
based on a view that the density of accommodation is higher than acceptable under Planning
considerations for the area of site. Although it is necessary to maximise the development to make it
viable, we believe the proposals do not represent overdevelopment of the site.

The area of the Application site is 415 m2. The area of accommodation is 324 m2. The Plot Ratio* is
therefore 0.78. In addition, the area of open space on the site is 163 m2, representing 39 % of the
site area, split between the communal shared space and private patio gardens.

We have made a comparison between the Plot Ratio (PR) of the Application proposals, with three
new residential developments of flats located in Helensburgh. These were recently approved by
Argyll and Bute Council. Photographs of the examples can be seen below.

e 14 Fast King Street — site area 450 m2 ; accommodation area —400 m2; PR = 0.89

This property has no open amenity space — 100 % of open area is given over to tarmac for car
circulation and parking.

¢ Honeysuckle Court, East King Street — site area 620 m2; accommodation area ~ 552 m2;
PR=0.89

Approximately 70% of the open area of the site is given over to tarmac for car circulation and
parking.

e 37 East Princes Street — site area 1,200 m2; area of accommodation ~ 1,300 m2; PR = 1.08

Approximately 70% of the open area of the site is given over to tarmac for car circulation and
parking.

Therefare in comparison to these Council approved new flat developments, the Application
propesals are significantly less densely developed, and offer 100% of the open area for resident’s
amenity. Additionally, these examples are situated out-with the town centre, where densities would
be expected to be less than town centre based development.

Therefore in conclusion we do not believe the Application proposals by this measure of density, are
overdeveloped.

( Note: The areas stated for the three examples are approximate, having been established from the
A&B Council online property searches. However they have been professionally interpreted and are
believed to be about +or- 5% accurate )

(* Plot Ratio is assumed to be a measure of the developed area of total accommodation on a site,
divided by the site area, to arrive at a figure representing density. The higher the figure, the higher
the density of development of the site)




14 East King Street

Honeysuckle Court, East King Street

37 East Princes Street

&




-

Page 49

5. Response to Planning Department concerns regarding ‘overlooking’

This has been stated as a verbal concern. We interpret this as the issue of privacy between windows.
In developing the proposals we have referred to a standard accepted by most Planning authorities,
copy attached, which is based on previous Building Control guidance.

See a copy of the site layout below, which demonstrates compliance with the angle of new windows
facing existing neighbours, and the distances of separation according to the tables.

The single storey flats are at right angles to the rear windows of the tenements at No.s 102a -106
and 108 west Princes Street. The minimum 2 metres requirement is exceeded in all cases.

The two storey flats facing the windows of the above addresses are 18 metres separation, which is
the minimum standard distance required for apartment to facing apartment, and complies with the
Local Plan requirements under Para. 13.3, page 107, under ‘overlooking’.

The neighbouring windows of the existing flats facing the rear, above the shop on the street at 112
West Princes Street, are not habitable rooms, so the minimum requirement under the above Local
Plan policy, of 12 metres to new apartment windows easily complies.

Therefore we believe that ‘overlooking’ concerns can be satisfied with this evidence.

Overlooking

13.1  Privacy in the home is something that
everyone has a right to expect, and in order to
protect this basic right, new development needs
to be carefully sited and designed. The use of
windows that are taller than they are wide can
greatly reduce problems of overlooking,
particularly in built-up areas or where the road
or footpath is close to the house.

132 The following standards have been
successfully applied by the Council for many
years and it is intended that their use will
continue.

13.3  No main window of a habitable room
(i.e. all rooms except bathrooms and hallways)
within a dwelling shall overiook (directly facing)
the - main~ windows - of ‘habitable rooms in
neighbouring dwellings at a distance of les
than 18 metres*fPlans submitted with planning
appications will be required to show the
location of all adjoining properties and the exact
osition of their main windows.IA qistance. of
‘meters is required between habitable room
} windows and gable ends or elevations with oni
non-habitable room windows JThese standards.
may be relaxed where the angle of view or the
design (i.e. use of frosted glass) of the windows
allows privacy to be maintained. In some cases
a condition may be attached to a planning
consent withdrawing permitted development
rights to insert new window openings.

*This may not be possible in densely built areas or
‘courtyard-type’ schemes.




‘suonenSey Bupiing Ul PaUIBILOD AUBULIO) SSOUL O} [E0IUSP] 218 SaoUBISIP sulepind ayL ‘a'N

{0

‘amoputm sy} 4o Buiuedo sy} jo sueld [eoiien syl (¢
pue 4810 8yl 1o Med Aue o) Buiuado mopuim auo Jo wed Aue Bujuiof aul 1sapoys sul (8

] ‘ usemiaq papnou aibue [2uozZuoY ey sueaw ,a1Buy,
<1661 doioesed poob o) apind v - WBKUNS pue JuBkep Jo) Buueid Q pepniou & Y ey |

noke) 2US, Hodey JuaWUsHOEIST Yoieasay Buiping sy} o} pieBal ensy OS{E {iMm [1DUNOD) BLY|. © SN
- - - - - - - - - Z o0 T
- - - - - - - - e | € |0 eg
OpUI M - - - - - - - 4 [ 14 <02 N H
: - - - - - - z | e | v | 9 loe|8¢
% T T T Tz e Ty e e [ov |33
7,% ol -l -7 -1lelelwvlole | elaos|®g
*< - T - 1T -T2l v 96| e/ 8 o958
| mopuim i ) )
Sogsexy H - - 4 € 14 ] 6 el 8L 8L 02 " .M
i - 4 € 14 9 6 el 3l 8t 8L | .08 o
z ¢ v 9 8 €L | 8t | 8L | 8t 8L |06 ]
FIE : o0 | oOb | 02 | 02 | oOF | 09 | 009 | o0L | 508 | <06
-IUBY] SJ0W JOU PBIOSIS 8¢ 0} “319 UDISUSIXSaSN0Y 4O mopuim je atbuy
MupuIn
N HSONINIZJO MOANIM NIZMLIE (STHLIW NI) SINFFAIND FONVLSIA WNININGA
09
e
o e
il
o S
o . Biieliglelg)
83U} AQ AIBSS808U PALUSIP SB Pasealoul 0 Paonpai 8g Aeld UoIum ‘souelsip sulspind ueasiel
(@) Ag ki A : 6
© 3l JO $SBULY 8L SSBSSE O] AJRNPIAIDUL 18 PesO0] 80 M SEOURISUINOAD 1O 188 YO "IB3IBAC
(al ¢ pARASNY pUB MOjE] S|0el 8Ul Ul UMOUS SB ‘Saiuisto.d feliuspIsal JUSOEIPE Usamlad SMOPUIM
i 10 Aiaisiaieiu Jo) seulepinG oyl 01 Afesust UHOUOD PINoYs JuswudopAp pasodoid suy (g
TS pue ‘sesie uspseb Ul sjoeieas e sieas) bl sreudosdde
BUL pue seiadoid fenuspisel JO Smopuim syl seyoesi 1BIAeD JO ainsesw ajgruosesl
2 JBuy} amnsus 0} siesodoid jusuwdoiensp jo Suoieodull sul SUluexs AfInyased fim jounoD syl (B
-:suopeoldae Buiuueld Jo UOIEIDPISUCD U 'z
<0G {
Ay o6, ;
mopuw WG 168 | - | mopuia ! ) JONVAIND
#IN | Bupsng k
uswidopasp
: [BRUSPISS) PUNCJR DUR Ul PBUIBILIBW PUB PaUSHaRISS o Aveaud pue Bunubidep 10 spiepuels
i PooB 1euUl @INSLIB 0} ¥88S jitMm [Iounoy) syl suopouny Ayenb usuwidoaasp sy 10 SSI0Joxe BU) Uj L
R | NOILONGOYLNI
saouelsiq
MOPUIM O} MOPUIM i
winwitulyy jo seydwexy !
g unbry w SMOPUIM Jo Aljiqisineiul pue Jybiikeq

G 810U 8auBpInG

G 810U
oouBplr



Page 51

Apartment window separating distances for privacy comply with accepted
standards.

{ angles and distances interpolated from table in Standards on previous page )

Wall to neighbours has no windows

Gable at first floor has no windows

Privacy of new bedroom windows protected by 2 metre high wall

Both angles at 90 degrees, minimum 2 metre separation standard is exceeded so complies
Angle at existing 65 deg., at new 70 deg. Distance is 11 metres so complies

Angle at existing is 85 deg., at new 45 deg. Distance is 9.75 metres so complies

Separation of apartment windows complies at 18 metres separation face to face

NowuewN e

oS
, _ et ' WINDSY Wi WD
s - T 1 )

| 1207 Scal®

- 2 WG
wA

P W
(Asmszirty

E V!
CoARD

X ‘ \ ;:_; \ , |
Jie P -

(2 »
L 2 STAXY IN LOWOTION of | IPapyc
EXISTING 2 —SToRey #RD )

WHTH 2ND. FLATS i

b




: Page 52

6. Response to Planning Department concerns regarding ‘daylighting’

This issue has been raised due to the height of the existing buildings surroundi»ng the site, and the
effects of daylighting by any proposed development on existing neighbouring dwellings.

in developing the proposals we have referred to the guidance in the British Research Establishment
(BRE) document ‘Site Layout Planning for Sunlight and Daylight’. This published standard is also
referred to in the Local Plan on page 107 under ‘Developments affecting Daylight to Neighbouring
Properties’.

The physical form of the proposals is virtually identical to the form of the existing commercial
premises on the site. There is a single storey element of three flats in place of the shop stores, and a
two storey element at the rear of the site in place of the two storey height shed. Therefore the
proposals do not alter the existing daylight and sunlight effects on neighbouring properties.

In addition, the drawings below demonstrate that the neighbouring properties requirement for
daylight, comply with the BRE standard referred to above, and are unaffected by the proposals.

The drawings also demonstrate that the windows of the proposed new flats comply with the
daylight requirements in the Standard.

With regard to sunlight availability to the new flats, the three single storey flat apartments face
east/southeast over an open rear garden behind No.s 102a-106 West Princes Street. They will obtain
several hours of sunshine during the morning, and in the evening the sun penetrates the site from
the West over the open garden area behind No.s 114-116 West Princes Street for 2-3 hours daily.
The apartment windows of the two-storey flats face almost directly south, and are at a sufficient
distance from the higher buildings on West Princes Street to obtain most hours of available sunshine
daily from morning till evening.

This level of sunlight into the Application site is likely to be at a higher level than many existing flats
facing north in Helensburgh, and including the single aspect flats in the Princes Court development
directly opposite the site.

Therefore we believe that the Application proposals satisfy required ‘daylighting’, and ‘sunlight’
requirements.

EXISTING BUILDINGS -
In des1gmng a new development or extension to a ‘ Suslion
building, it-is important to safeguard the daylight to
nearby buildings. A similar procedure can show
whether an existing building still receives enough
skylight. First, draw a section perpendicular to each
affected main window wall of the existing building
(Figure 2).. If none of the new development subtends
an angle to the horizontal (mheasured from the centre
of the lowest window): greater than 25°, it is unlikely to
have a substantial éffect on- the. diffuse dayhghtmg of

b buildi Figure 2 ' Angular criterion for sﬁacing of buildings. For existing
the existing building. , : buildings the reference height is in the middle of the

lowest window

If, for any part of the new development, this angle is
more than 25°, a more detailed check is needed to find
the loss of skylight to the existing building. Both the BRE guidance
total amount of skylight and its dxsmbutlon within the R
building are important. :




Page 53

Existing Built form of commel;cial premises on the site

——

Play Aree

.

Key : | z/‘ single storey height ,§ two storey height

13




CTION THROUGH SITE A —4,

: Z-STOREY IN LochTion]
e

\" 200 - 7
PRoW BWG. Gr8/[A (oL b s
uTULINE oF NSTING SHEd
NEW Z2-STeey Remaven
ANE S G B | Rewmover ,
I ND DAYUGHT /
SN G v DAY Gy obsmuc}r.m\\ oBSTONGT O
PENE TRATTaWD - J:,;{
i ~ ]
\ B
# ol
NTeas Bowds | =
opee o! B g
&GARDOTW : ~) 1B
Vi e -
G GB/Aafoz . - K ST ——}—4eeTioN B

i 20% “+




Page 55 /

7. Response to Planning Department concerns regarding ‘amenity’

Concerns were naturally raised regarding the amenity for the occupants of the new flats, mainly due
to the proximity of taller buildings surrounding the site, and the existence of commercial sheds
adjacent to the site at the rear of No. 102 West Princes Street. '

There is also an issue regarding any change to the amenity of existing neighbouring properties
around the site caused by the proposals.

Firstly, addressing the amenity of existing neighbours, the Application proposals immediately
improve the visual amenity of the numerous properties which have an aerial view of the
development. See the ‘before and after’ view photomontages below, to visualise that the existing
eyesore of dilapidated commercial sheds will be replaced by a new, attractive courtyard
development with good quality materials, designed sympathetically in relation to the historical
character of the surrounding built environment.

Also, the environmental amenity of neighbouring properties during working hours will improve,
because the current noise created by the existing commercial / vehicular activities will be removed
from the site. And as discussed within previous sections of this report, the amenity value of daylight
and sunlight for neighbours will be unaffected, and the required privacy standards will be satisfied.

Secondly, the amenity of the new properties has to be considered. In terms of site openness there
are certainly higher buildings surrounding the new dwellings, and views and outlook are limited. The
site layout mitigates against this problem by locating the new apartment windows to afford the best
aspect possible.

The three single storey flats face west/south west directly over an open back garden, with upper
views of sky and daylight above the 2 metre boundary wall. Lower views are of the landscaped
courtyard with planting growing against the wall. The two flats to the north face south with views of
the rear of the street properties. However there are gap views south and West to the street, and
upper sky views and daylight over neighbouring roofscape, which is at least 18 metres distance.

All flats have a direct view into the high quality, communal landscaped courtyard. This is available as
a semi-private community resource for residents to sit out in good weather, encouraging a
community spirit in this housing group. Although mainstream housing has a higher degree of open
space and outlook, the targeted residents for these specificaily designed one-bedroom flats are not
likely to place such a high value on these aspects. In addition the issues of daylight, sunlight and
privacy have been demonstrated as satisfactory in previous sections.

Concerns were expressed about the unpleasant view of the commercial sheds situated directly to
the East, within the rear of No. 102 Waest Princes Street. The design takes account of this, and there
is no direct facing view of the sheds from any apartment window. There are partial views from the
three single storey flats, but all flats have a substantially less direct view of the sheds in comparison
with several existing flats on the street. See drawing numbers GB/A/02 and 03 on the previous page
for demonstration of the above comments. We believe therefore that, on balance, the ‘amenity’
appropriate for this type of courtyard development is satisfactory.



e 56

("]
©
[¢)
N
w
©
Q9
} .
Q
€
£
Q
Q
omb
A%
X
D|e
S
(o
>
.n.
Q
Q.
(@]
| .
Q
[oT1]
[ oy
=
s
(@)
Q
L
o0
QL
[
e
(@]
} .
S
2
2
>

Same View fdllowing demolition and building the proposed flats




Page 57

8. Architectural design and materials proposed

The Local Plan requires this type of backlands development to take account of the existing
settlement character, and the area’s historical development. We have referred in Section 3 to the
historical nature of backlands development in the immediate neighbourhood, as precedent for the
Application proposals.

The proposals have been designed to knit into the historical urban fabric of the area. The maps and
photographs below demonstrate that the plan layout of the proposals repeats an historical
established form of site development, with buildings including houses built in a linear form along the—
rear of the plots. Properties have been extended into the plots from the street frontage buildings.
Therefore the proposals simply emulate this historical pattern of development, ensuring a similarity

to existing urban form.

The architectural design relates to the surrounding mix of traditional properties, with proposed
similar sloped roofs, dormer windows, render/stonework, and windows with similar and traditional
proportions to those in the neighbourhood. There will be high quality paviours to form the courtyard
surface, and high quality planting, with sustainable timber screens to the bins. See the previous

aerial photomontage for the scale and character of the architectural design proposed.

Play Area

I+




Page 58

View of historical linear pattern of development including housing, along the
rear of the properties facing West Princes Street

Existing Commercial shed on the

Application site

View from West Princes Street into these rear properties

( see previous page for photograph locations )




Page 59

9. Statement on local community support and objections

The Applicant has received supportive feedback from neighbours notified. Several have visited the
shop and have viewed drawing No. GB/A/01, and are supportive of this type of development. One
has written a letter to the Council expressing their support.The Community Council have looked at
this Application and their Secretary has reported to the Applicant that they fully support this
proposal, and confirm there is a need for this type of housing in this community.

We have identified only one letter of objection on the Council online Application file (this appears
twice — one as a letter, and the same objection as an email ) despite over 50 neighbour notifications
being issued. This single objection covers a wide range of issues, and we believe most of these
concerns are demonstrated as satisfied within this report.

10. Examples of housing elsewhere, supported by national government
which encourages innovation and quality

Both UK National government and local councils encourage innovation and high quality in finding
housing solutions for community need.

We believe having identified a community housing need, that we have been innovative in creating a
satisfactory solution to meeting this need. Two recent examples of housing in Harlow and Cambridge
which have won Awards, are unusual in providing housing in which high density courtyard forms,
with homes in close proximity, are acceptable through good design which respects amenity. These
examples do not comply with current overlooking and privacy distances, but have been approved
and are popular with occupants. Their architecture and materials are appropriate to their location.
The UK national government at Minister level, and the Commission for Architecture and the Built
Environment have encouraged all Councils in the UK to follow these examples.

The Application proposals represent such courtyard designs, with close proximity to other dwellings,

but complying with the Regylgtionsgs explai

ned in th

is report.

Newhall, Harlow Accordia, Cambridge




-

Page 60

11. Conclusion

We believe the Application proposals, despite being at ‘in Principle’ stage, have been sufficiently
thought through and developed in detail to ensure they can be built to acceptable standards if
approved.

One of the problems associated with this site is that on viewing it there is a clutter of dilapidated
commercial buildings of differing ages and construction. There is a difficulty in visualising the
potential quality of built development. We believe the images provided in this report will go some
way to assist people to see the potential.

The Applicant is keen to work with the Council Planning Department to achieve an acceptable
solution on this site to satisfy the community need identified.

We would welcome your further views/ comments to achieve a solution as soon as possible.

Report prepared by J.Black BSc. Dipl. Arch(Distinction) Dipl. Urban Design SAl Registered Architect
For JB DesignConsult Limited.

Agent for the Applicant.




Page 61

e 32-36 Forn 5T, .

AMOS 3% —4Y Torns ST.

B

SINQK  STORRY EupsT

gl 7 (T A — T =
esfleal 2NN .PATi0
g T goredery -
LA e COREOM I 1o o g wart

2 v&%ﬂ;\ IN LocaTiow o ||
EXSTING 2 ~SToRuey D

{
|
WiHH 2ND, BUATS ,A

2- m\q,ﬂh%
BElenr Sees

Z-STOREY [Ny rq&n@w
OF EX\STAL

LOCATION PLAN H_meo
_ Proposed Change of Use
112 West Princes Street
Helensburgh G84 8ND
Outline Plan and Section
Option 3 -5 No. Flats
Drawing Number GB/A/02

September 2009 Scale 1:100




Page 62

PRINCES sTRECT

i3

SECToN|

WEST

WS M - WL

NO .12

d\

I ® -

LanE Access (PESSSTRIAS i)

Bo LLARD

|

PLAN OF SITE

po. 10D

SECTION THROUGH SITE A l>

3 O NEw -8t




Page 63

e
[ eaans

Notice of Review
— Application
number
09/01417/PPP

Copy of Planning Services
Refusal of Planning
Permission in Principle dated
18th February 2010, for
reference

S T o R S T S




Services

® Seirbheisean Planaidh

PolicyeProjectse ManagementeStandards

" TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING " 'COTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVE OPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE)
- (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008 :

| refer {o your apphcatlon dated 18th September 2009 for planmng permission m prmcnple under the -
- above mentioned Act and Regulatlons in‘respect of the following development:

Outline Plannmg_ Permlsslon for the erectson of 5no dwelhnghouses at 112 West Prmces
o Street Helensburgh Argyll And Bute G84 8XD

__.:_"_Argyn and Bute Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentlone .Act and Regulations
~ hereby refuse planning permission in principle for the above development for the reason(s)
contained in the attached appendix. et

i IE T v e S e 20

- Dated: 18 February 2010
w -d L] GWM'Vt .

Angus J. Gilmour
Head of Planning

| WWW-argyiIubute.govﬁ’ukf}_! COUNCIL

-




Page 65

REASONS FOR REUSAL RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER 09/01417/PPP

1. The application site is located in a backiand plot in the rear court area of properties
fronting onto West Princes Street. It has traditionally been used as part of a painter
and decorators and for the repair of motor vehicles. The site is constrained,
overlooked and dominated by adjoining flatted properties particularly those to the
west fronting onto John Street. The site extends to 415 square metres, 25 metres of
which comprises the access. The proposal is for a terrace of three single storey
dwellings together with a 2 storey block of 2 flats. On the rear elevation the
development would be hard up against the boundary wall of the flats to the west. The
dwellings will have no curtilage at the rear and a limited curtilage to the front, each
comprising a small area measuring 4.5m by 7 (31.5 square metres) which is virtually
all hard surface including bin stores. Each of the proposed dwellings is indicated to
take up approximately 60% of the individual plots. The flatted development will also
have a limited curtilage comprising a small area of garden ground measuring
approximately 6.2 by 6.2 metres (38 square metres). On the basis of the flats to the
west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the site, the size of the application
site, the number of properties proposed, the limited outlook and amenity space of
both the proposed dwellings and the flats and that in turn the proposed flats overlook
the dwellings then this proposal constitutes over-development and its amenity would
be severely undermined. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP ENV1, LP
ENV19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan which, inter alia, presume
against development with poor quality or inappropriate layouts or densities including
over-development and overshadowing of sites.

NOTE TO APPLICANT

For the purpose of clarity it is advised that this decision notice relates to the details specified
on the application form dated 17/09/2009 and the refused drawing reference numbers
GB/A/01 and GB/A/02.




Page 66

NOTES TO APPLICANT (1) RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER 09/01417/PPP

1.

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision to refuse permission for or approval
required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning
authority to review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of this notice.
The notice of review should be addressed to the Director of Corporate Services,
Argyll and Bute Council, Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably
beneficial use in its existing state, and it cannot be rendered capable of reasonably
beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be
permitted, the owner of the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase
notice requiring the purchase of the landowner’s interest in the land in accordance
with Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).




Page 67

APPENDIX TO DECISION REFUSAL NOTICE

Appendix relative to application 09/01417/PPP

(A)

(B)

Has the application been the subject of any “non-material” amendment in terms of
Section 32A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) to
the initial submitted plans during its processing.

Yes
If Yes: Enter a description of the “non” material changes.

Further information was submitted in the form of a supporting statement and indicative plans.

The reason why planning permission has been refused.

. The application site is located in a backland plot in the rear court area of properties

fronting onto West Princes Street. It has traditionally been used as part of a painter
and decorators and for the repair of motor vehicles. The site is constrained,
overlooked and dominated by adjoining flatted properties particularly those to the
west fronting onto John Street. The site extends to 415 square metres, 25 metres of
which comprises the access. The proposal is for a terrace of three single storey
dwellings together with a 2 storey block of 2 flats. On the rear elevation the
development would be hard up against the boundary wall of the flats to the west. The
dwellings will have no curtilage at the rear and a limited curtilage to the front, each
comprising a small area measuring 4.5m by 7 (31.5 square metres) which is virtually
all hard surface including bin stores. Each of the proposed dwellings is indicated to
take up approximately 60% of the individual plots. The flatted development will also
have a limited curtilage comprising a small area of garden ground measuring
approximately 6.2 by 6.2 metres (38 square metres). On the basis of the flats to the
west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the site, the size of the application
site, the number of properties proposed, the limited outlook and amenity space of
both the proposed dwellings and the flats and that in turn the proposed flats overlook
the dwellings then this proposal constitutes over-development and its amenity would
be severely undermined. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP ENV1, LP
ENV19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan which, inter alia, presumes
against development with poor quality or inappropriate layouts or densities including
over-development and overshadowing of sites.




Page 68

Rt SR S SR S

Notice of Review
— Application
number
09/01417/PPP

Document No. 7

Copy of Development Services
Delegated Planning
Application Report and Report
of handling, for reference.




Page 69

Argyll and Bute Council
Development Services

Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of handling as required
by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning Permission or Planning
Permission in Principle

Reference No: 09/01417/PPP

Planning Hierarchy: Local Application

Applicant: Mr G Burgess
Proposal: Planning Permission in Principle for the erection of 5no dwellinghouses.
Site Address: 112 West Princes Street Helensburgh Argyll and Bute G84 8XD

DECISION ROUTE

(i) Sect 43 (A) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

(A) THE APPLICATION
(i) Development Requiring Express Planning Permission

- Erection of 5 dwellings

(i) Other specified operations

- Connection to existing public water supply
- Connection to existing public sewer

(B) RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that planning permission be refused due to the reasons detailed
overleaf.

(C) HISTORY:

09/01472/PP - Change of Use of ground floor shop (Class 1) to 1no. flat (Class 9) —
permitted 07/12/2009

(D) CONSULTATIONS:

Roads Helensburgh &  12.10.2009 Recommend refusal
Lomond

Environmental Health 15.10.2009 No objections subject to conditions



Page 70

Scottish Water North 09.10.2009 No objections

(E)

PUBLICITY: None

(F)

REPRESENTATIONS:

Two letters of objection have been received as has one letter of support.

B and P McCallan 102A West Princes Street Helensburgh G84 8XD (SUPPORT)

Frank Rooney And Lucy Thompson Flat 3/1, 104 West Princes Street Helensburgh G84 8XD
{email and letter dated 08/10/2209) (OBJECTION)

(i)

(i)

Summary of issues raised in objection

The plans lack the necessary information and detail.
Comment: This is an application for planning permission in principle. Further plans are
not required at this stage.

The plot does not seem adequate for the proposed building.
Comment:. See my assessment.

There is the potential of motor vehicles for 5 new houses. Where will they park?
Comment: The Area Roads Manager has recommended refusal. See my assessment.

The existing vehicular access has bad visibility and is dangerous.
Comment: The Area Roads Manager has recommended refusal. See my assessment.

It is difficult for emergency vehicles to enter the site.
Comment: The Area Roads Manager has recommended refusal.

The close proximity to other buildings mean fire would spread easily.
Comment: This issue would be dealt with at building warrant stage.

To squeeze more households into this small already built up area can only contribute to
noise levels and the increasingly threatening atmosphere on weekend evenings.
Comment: It is not considered that additional dwellings on this site would contribute to
these factors.

The erection of a dwelling of any height at this location would render our drying green
useless, thus affecting our standards of living.
Comment: See my assessment.

Is it in the interests of the community to allow another business to be disappear?
Comment: Planning cannot control market forces.

To shoehorn 5 new households into this area seems contrary to any sensible notion of
fown planning.

Comment:

Summary of issues raised in support

I am delighted to see such a well thought out development, it can only enhance the
outlook of the area. At the moment the sheds are an eyesore.




Page 71

{G) SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Has the application been the subject of:

U

()

(iif)

(iv)

Environmental Statement: N
(If yes — free text area for summary of key issues raised)

An appropriate assessment under the Conservation (Natural Habitats) Regulations 1994: N
(if yes = free text area for summary of main issues raised)

A design or design/access statement: Y

- The dwellings will be developed as genuine ‘affordable housing.

- The ground floor flats will have ‘barrier free' access and internal requirements for wheelchair
dependant people.

- The scale and design of the dwellings produce low energy running cost which complies with
targets for a low carbon footprint.

- There are a number of similar backland developments in close proximity to the proposed site

- The proposed site is significantly less developed than other recently approved sites within the
town centre area.

- The window to window distances are complied with therefore there are no concerns with regards
to overlook.

- The proposed development is designed so as to satisfy ‘daylighting’ and ‘sunlight’ requirements.

- The amenity of neighbours will be improved since the existing garages will be removed. This will
remove an eyesore and a noise nuisance.

- The architectural design relates to the surrounding mix of traditional properties.

- There will be high quality paviours and planting in the courtyard.

A report on the impact of the proposed development eg. Retail impact, transport impact,
noise impact, flood risk, drainage impact etc: N

(If yes — list of assessments/reports)

N/A

Summary of main issues raised by each assessment/report

N/A

(H) PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

®

Is a Section 75 agreement required: N

(If yes, Summary of the terms and heads of agreement)

N/A

(If agreement not completed in four months, grounds for refusal)

N/A

U] Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31 or 32: N




Page 72

(J) Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations
over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application
(i) List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in

assessment of the application.

Argyll and Bute Structure Plan

STRAT DC1 - This policy details of the scale of development which is generally
acceptable in the different sizes of settlements.

Argvll and Bute Local Plan

LP ENV 1 ~ This policy requires that the Council assesses applications for their impact on
both the natural, human and built environment.

LP ENV18 - This policy requires a high standard of design and that consideration be
given to setting, layout and density and design.

LP HOU 1 - This policy gives a general presumption in favour of certain categories of
housing development unless there is an unacceptable environmental, servicing or access
impact.

LP TRAN 6 — This policy sets out the parking provision required for developments which
are set out in appendix C of the plan.

(i) List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in the
assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of Circular
4/2009.

The Council's Sustainable Design Guidance

(K) Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental Impact
Assessment: N
(If yes, screening opinion as to why an Environmental Assessment is not required)

(L) Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation
(PAC): N

(M) Has a sustainability check list been submitted: N

(N)  Does the Council have an interest in the site: N

(0)

Requirement for a hearing (PAN41 or other): N




Page 73

N/A

(P)

Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations

Settlement Strategy

The site is located within the Settlement boundary of Helensburgh and within
Helensburgh Town Centre as defined by the Argyll & Bute Local Plan. Policy STRAT
DC1 of the Structure Plan is applicable as well as Policies LP ENV1, LPENV 19, LP
HOU1 and Appendix A of the Local Plan. These Policies give guidance on the scale of
developments that are acceptable within the settlements and also the design principles
including layout and density. It is considered that the proposed development does not
accord with these policies.

Location, Nature and Design of Proposed Development

The proposal is to erect 3 dwellings and 2 flats on a site where there is an existing
commercial garage and outbuildings. The site measures approximately 415 metres
square. However 25 square metres of this is taken up with the access lane giving a
useable area of approximately 390 square metres. The site lies to the rear of an existing
2 storey building which has a retail unit at ground floor level and domestic
accommodation at first floor level. It is within the town centre and the site is surrounded
by tenement buildings. The site is therefore considered to be backiand development.

While this is an outline application, indicative plans have been provided to show how
these dwellings would fit into the site. It is proposed to have a mews style development
with the proposed dwellings using approximately the same footprint as the existing
garages. This will have 3 dwellings to the west of the site where there are existing
outbuildings and 2 flats to the rear of the site where the existing garages are. This would
provide a courtyard area to the front of all of the dwellings. A patio and garden area
would be available for 2 of the properties and this will be tucked into the north east of the
site.

It is considered that the proposal is overdevelopment of the site, is backland
development and out of keeping with the settlement pattern of the area, which is
contrary to Policy LP ENV 19 of the adopted Local Plan. There are examples of
backland development in close proximity to the development, the closest being the Flats
at 90 West Princes Street which are just 27 metres from the application site. However,
these buildings are located to the north boundary of the site and their rear elevation
looks onto a play area which gives an open outlook. The proposed development will be
enclosed and constrained by surrounding flatted properties. While minimum window to
window distances may be met and the applicant has shown in the supporting statement
that sunlight and daylight are not an issue, it is considered that the privacy and amenity
of any prospective residents would be adversely affected.

Appendix A of the adopted local plan states that all developments should have some
private open space, with courtyard style developments only occupying a maximum of
45% of their site. On the rear elevation the development would be hard up against the
boundary wall of the flats to the west. The dwellings will have no curtilage at the rear and
a limited curtilage to the front, each comprising a small area measuring 4.5m by 7 (31.5
square metres) which is virtually all hard surface including bin stores. Each of the
proposed dwellings is indicated to take up approximately 61% of the individual plots. The




Page 74

flatted development will also have a limited curtilage comprising a small area of garden ground measuring
approximately 6.2 by 6.2 metres (38 square metres). The applicant has shown that there are a number of
modern flatted developments within Helensburgh that have less open space associated with them and most
of this is given over to parking. However, these developments all have direct road frontages as well as open
aspects to the rear which contribute to the feeling of open space and their setting.

On the basis of the flats to the west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the site, the size of the
application site, the number of properties proposed, the limited outlook and amenity space of both the
proposed dwellings and the flats and that in turn the proposed flats overlook the dwellings then this proposal
constitutes over-development and its amenity would be severely undermined. The site also has little amenity
area associated with the development.

C. Road Network, Parking and Associated Transport Matters.
The site is accessed through a narrow lane measuring approximately 3 metres wide and 8.5 metres in
length. The area roads Manager has recommended that the application be refused since the existing
access sightlines are substandard and unacceptable. He has-advised that in order to improve this, for
vehicle and pedestrian safety, the access should be widened to 4.8 metres. However, this would involve
demolishing part of one of the buildings on either side of the entrance, which is not a viable option.
Since the proposal is within the town centre, zero parking for one bedroom dwellings is acceptable. Since
the indicative plans submitted show only one bedroom dwellings, no car parking is required. The Area
Roads Engineer however is concerned that vehicles will still access the site and to stop this, the applicant
will install a bollard at the entrance.

Q) Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan: N

(R) Reasons why planning permission or a Planning Permission in Principle should be refused
It is considered that the proposal is overdevelopment of the site. Although the footprint of the development
will remain much the same as the existing garages, replacing this with dwellings is not an acceptable option.
These dwellings will have flats and tenements surrounding all elevations and will feel enclosed and confined,
adversely affecting the amenity of prospective residents. This is contrary to Policies LP ENV 1, LP ENV 19
and Appendix A off the adopted Local Plan which seeks to resist development that would constitute
inappropriate densities and overdevelopment of sites as well as development that would adversely affect the

" amenity of residents.

(S} Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development Plan
N/A

(T) Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland: N

Author of Report: Stephanie Glen Date: 26/01/2010

Reviewing Officer: Howard Young Date: 29/1/2010

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning



Page 75

GROUNDS OF REFUSAL RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. NO. 09/01417/PPP

1. The application site is located in a backland plot in the rear court area of properties
fronting onto West Princes Street. It has traditionally been used as part of a painter and
decorators and for the repair of motor vehicles. The site is constrained, overlooked and
dominated by adjoining flatted properties particularly those to the west fronting onto John
Street. The site extends to 415 square metres, 25 metres of which comprises the
access. The proposal is for a terrace of three single storey dwellings together with a 2
storey block of 2 flats. On the rear elevation the development would be hard up against
the boundary wall of the flats to the west. The dwellings will have no curtilage at the rear
and a limited curtilage to the front, each comprising a small area measuring 4.5m by 7
(31.5 square metres) which is virtually all hard surface including bin stores. Each of the
proposed dwellings is indicated to take up approximately 60% of the individual plots. The
flatted development will also have a limited curtilage comprising a small area of garden
ground measuring approximately 6.2 by 6.2 metres (38 square metres). On the basis of
the flats to the west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the site, the size of the
application site, the number of properties proposed, the limited outlook and amenity
space of both the proposed dwellings and the flats and that in turn the proposed flats
overlook the dwellings then this proposal constitutes over-development and its amenity
would be severely undermined. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP ENV1,
LP ENV19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan which, inter alia, presume
against development with poor quality or inappropriate layouts or densities including
over-development and overshadowing of sites.

NOTE TO APPLICANT
For the purpose of clarity it is advised that this decision notice relates to the details specified on

the application form dated 17/09/2009 and the refused drawing reference numbers GB/A/01 and
GB/A/02.




Page 76

APPENDIX TO DECISION REFUSAL NOTICE

Appendix relative to application 09/01417/PPP

(A)

Has the application been the subject of any “non-material” amendment in terms
of Section 32A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) to the initial submitted plans during its processing.

Yes
If Yes: Enter a description of the “non” material changes.

Further information was submitted in the form of a supporting statement and
indicative plans.

B)

The reason why planning permission has been refused.

. The application site is located in a backland plot in the rear court area of properties

fronting onto West Princes Street. It has traditionally been used as part of a painter and
decorators and for the repair of motor vehicles. The site is constrained, overlooked and
dominated by adjoining flatted properties particularly those to the west fronting onto John
Street. The site extends to 415 square metres, 25 metres of which comprises the
access. The proposal is for a terrace of three single storey dwellings together with a 2
storey block of 2 flats. On the rear elevation the development would be hard up against
the boundary wall of the flats to the west. The dwellings will have no curtilage at the rear
and a limited curtilage to the front, each comprising a small area measuring 4.5m by 7
(31.5 square metres) which is virtually all hard surface including bin stores. Each of the
proposed dwellings is indicated to take up approximately 60% of the individual plots. The
flatted development will also have a limited curtilage comprising a small area of garden
ground measuring approximately 6.2 by 6.2 metres (38 square metres). On the basis of
the flats to the west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the site, the size of the
application site, the number of properties proposed, the limited outiook and amenity
space of both the proposed dwellings and the flats and that in turn the proposed flats
overlook the dwellings then this proposal constitutes over-development and its amenity
would be severely undermined. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP ENV1,
LP ENV19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan which, inter alia, presumes
against development with poor quality or inappropriate layouts or densities including
over-development and overshadowing of sites.




Page 77 Agenda ltem 3b

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

REFUSAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION IN PRINCIPLE
REFERENCE NUMBER: 09/01417/PPP

Mr G Burgess

JB Design Consult Limited
10 Kenilworth Avenue
Helensburgh

G84 7JR

| refer to your application dated 18th September 2009 for planning permission in principle under the
above mentioned Act and Regulations in respect of the following development;

Outline Planning Permission for the arection of Sno dwellinghouses. at 112 West Princes
Street Helensburgh Argyll And Bute G84 8XD

Argyll and Bute Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentioned Act and Regulations
hereby refuse planning permission in principle for the above development for the reason(s)
containad in the attached appendix.

Dated: 18 February 2010

(P -

Angus J, Gilmour
Head of Planning




Page 78

NOTES TO APPLICANT ( 1) RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER 09/01417/PPpP

1. I the applicant is aggrieved by the decision to refuse permission for or approval
required by a condition in respect of the propased development, or to grant
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning
authority to review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of this notice.
The notice of review should be addressed to the Director of Corporate Services,
Argyll and Bute Council, Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT.

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the
owner of the land claims that the iand has become incapable of reasonably
beneficial use in its existing state, and it cannot be rendered capable of reasonably
beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be
permitted, the owner of the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase
notice requiring the purchase of the landowner's interest in the land in accordance
with Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended),




Page 79

REASONS FOR REUSAL RELATIVE TO APPLICATION NUMBER 08/01417/PPP

1. The application site is located in a backland plot in the rear court areg of properties
fronting onto West Princes Street. It has traditionally been used as part of 2 painter
and decorators and for the repair of motor vehicles. The site is constrained,
overlooked and dominated by adjoining flatted properties particularly those to the
west fronting onto John Street. The site extends to 415 square metres, 25 metres of
which comprises the access. The proposal is for a terrace of three single storey
dwellings together with a 2 storey block of 2 flats. On the rear elevation the
development would be hard up against the boundary wall of the flats to the west.
The dwellings will have no curtilage at the rear and a limited curtilage to the front,
each comprising a small area measuring 4.5m by 7 (31.5 square metres) which is
virtually all hard surface including bin stores. Each of the proposed dwellings is
indicated to take up approximately 80% of the individual plots. The flatted A
development will also have a limited curtilage comprising a small area of garden
ground measuring approximately 6.2 by 6.2 metres (38 square metres). On the
basis of the flats to the west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the site,
the size of the application site, the number of properties proposed, the limited
outlook and amenity space of both the proposed dwellings and the flats and that in
turn the proposed flats overlook the dwellings then this proposal constitutes over-
development and its amenity would be severely undermined. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policies LP ENV1, LP ENV19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and
Bute Local Plan which, inter alia, presume against development with poor quality or
inappropriate layouts or densities including over-development and overshadowing of
sites.

NOTE TO APPLICANT
For the purpose of clarity it is advised that this decision notice relates to the details

specified on the application form dated 17/09/2009 and the refused drawing reference
numbers GB/A/01 and GB/A/D2.




Page 80

APPENDIX TO DECISION REFUSAL NOTICE

Appendix relative to application 09/01417/PPP

(A)

(B)

Has the application been the subject of any “non-material” amendment in terms of
Section 32A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended)
to the initial submitted plans during its processing.

Yes
If Yes: Enter a description of the “non” material changes.

Further information was submitted in the form of a supporting statement and indicative plans.

The reason why planning permission has been refused.

. The application site is located in a backland plot in the rear court area of properties

fronting onto West Princes Street. It has traditionally been used as part of a painter
and decorators and for the repair of motor vehicles. The site is constrained,
overlooked and dominated by adjoining flatted properties particularly those to the
west fronting onto John Street. The site extends to 415 square metres, 25 metres of
which comprises the access, The proposal is for & terrace of three single storey
dwellings together with g 2 storey block of 2 flats. On the rear elevation the
development would be hard up against the boundary wall of the flats to the west.
The dwellings will have no curtilage at the rear and a iimited curtilage to the front,

Bute Local Plan which, inter alia, presumes against development with poor quality
or inappropriate layouts or densities including over-development and
overshadowing of sites,




Page 81

STATEMENT OF CASE
FOR
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
LOCAL REVIEW BODY

REFUSAL OF PLANNING PERMISSION FOR THE
ERECTION OF 5NO DWELLINGHOUSES AT LAND TO
THE REAR OF 112 WEST PRINCES STREET,
HELENSBURGH

PLANNING PERMISSION IN PRINCIPLE APPLICATION
REFERENCE NUMBER 09/01417/PPP

15 March 2010




Page 82

INTRODUCTION

The Planning Authority is Argyll & Bute Council (‘the Council’). The appellant is Mr Burgess
(‘the appellant’).

The planning permission in principle application, reference number 09/01417/PPP, for the
erection of 5 no dwellinghouses at land to the rear of 112 West Princes Street, Helensburgh
(‘the appeal site’) was refused under delegated powers on 18 February 2010. The planning
application has been appealed and is subject of referral to a Local Review Body.

DESCRIPTION OF SITE

The application site lies to the rear of an existing 2 storey building which has a retail unit at
ground floor level and domestic accommodation at first floor level. It lies within the town centre
and is surrounded by tenement buildings. It is currently used as a garage/workshop and as
such has associated buildings. The site measures approximately 415 square metres, however
25 square metres of this is taken up with the access lane giving a useable area of approximately
390 square metres.

SITE HISTORY

03/01623/COU — Change of use of vacant storage building (Class 6) to car repair workshop
(Class 5) — permitted 07/11/2005.

A pre-application enquiry was submitted to the Council and a site visit was conducted with the
appellant. Various issues were discussed as the site is raises a number of issues. The
application under review was submitted before a formal reply was sent out. A subsequent site
visit did take place where it was advised that the application was considered over development
and would be recommended for refusal. It was advised at this stage to submit supporting
information so that this was in place should the applicant wish to appeal our decision. [t was
and still is considered that the number of dwellings required by the applicant is not acceptable in
this confined, backland area. It was also considered that further discussion was not merited and
would prove unproductive since this is an application for Planning Permission in Principle and
the principle of 5 houses is unacceptable, regardless of how they are designed.

STATUTORY BASIS ON WHICH THE APPEAL SHOULD BE DECIDED

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 provides that where, in
making any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the Development Plan
and the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. This is the test for this application.




Page 83

STATEMENT OF CASE
Argyll & Bute Council considers the determining issue in relation to the case are as follows:

- Whether the proposed development for the erection of 5 dwellings in this backland
location accords with the Development Plan and Development Plan Policies and, if not,
whether there are any material considerations which would overrule the reasons for
refusal which have been stated by the Local Planning Authority.

The Report of Handling (Appendix 1) sets out the Council’'s assessment of the application in
terms of Development Plan policy and other material considerations.

COMMENTS ON APPELLANT’S SUBMISSION

- BACKLAND DEVELOPMENT

The appellant states that there is an historical precedent for backland development in the
Helensburgh area and recognises that some of these ‘are not necessarily well located or
designed’ but are popular due to lower property values than street facing housing. Although
there are three examples of backland development within close proximity to the development,
these sites are not constrained on each side by flatted dwellings with as high a density as the
proposal. The closest example at 90 West Princes Street has a play park to the rear which
maintains an open outlook and the other examples have greater areas of open space
associated with them. Each planning application is judged on its own merits and it is considered
that in this instance historical precedent, especially of developments that are ‘not necessarily
well located or designed’ should not outweigh the provisions of the development plan.

- PRIVACY/OVERLOOKING

The appellant's have stated that the Council’'s assessment in terms of privacy/overlook is not
justified since they have shown that minimum window to window distances, as set out in
Appendix A of the Local Plan, can be met. While the Council is not disputing that these
minimum distances can be met, privacy and overlook must also be assessed on amenity
grounds. The site will be overlooked by flatted dwellings from all elevations, thus compromising
the privacy of the proposed residents. This will create a feeling of being dominated, constrained
and overshadowed by these properties, adversely affecting the amenity and privacy of the
prospective residents.

The appellant also disagrees with a comment within the Council’s Report of Handling which
states, ‘the flats to the west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the site’. This
statement has been misinterpreted by the appellant. This does not refer to the proposed
dwellings, instead refers to the existing flats to the west of the site which the Council consider
would dominate, constrain and overshadow the site. Indeed the proposed dwellings, as stated
by the appellant do only have a ridge height of 3 metres, while the flatted dwellings to the west
of the site, just 5 metres from the proposed development are 2 ¥z storey tenement buildings with
a ridge height much higher, which in turn would dominate, constrain and overshadow the site.




Page 84

Policy LP ENV 1 states that development will be resisted that does not take into consideration
the privacy of existing and proposed development, while Policy LP ENV 19 states that
developments with poor quality layouts or densities including over-development and over-
shadowing of sites shall be resisted. The proposal is therefore contrary to these policies.

OPEN SPACE/DENSITY

The appellants state that the proposed development has satisfactory amenity space and indeed
a greater amount than a number of more modern developments within Helensburgh’s town
centre. This point is covered in the Report of Handling, however it must be highlighted that
these modern developments referred to are flatted dwellings with direct road frontages as well
as open outiooks from the rear elevation. This creates a sense of open space and contributes
to their setting. These developments also pre-date the adopted Local Plan. By contrast, these
single storey and 1 % storey dwellings will be constrained within their site with limited outlook
and as limited useable amenity space. It is considered that these proposed dwellings and the
more recent flatted developments cannot be compared to each other since they are very
different in their siting, scale and design.

CONCLUSION

It is considered that the proposal is overdevelopment of the site. Although the footprint of the
development will remain much the same as the existing garages, replacing this with dwellings is
not an acceptable option. These dwellings would have flats and tenements surrounding all
elevations and would feel enclosed and confined, adversely affecting the amenity of prospective
residents. This is contrary to Policies LP ENV 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A off the adopted
Local Plan which seeks to resist development that would constitute inappropriate densities and
overdevelopment of sites as well as development that would adversely affect the amenity of
residents. Taking account of the above it is respectfully requested that the appeal be
dismissed.




Page 85

Appendix 1

Argyll and Bute Council
Development Services

Delegated or Committee Planning Application Report and Report of handling as required
by Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(Scotland) Regulations 2008 relative to applications for Planning Permission or Planning
Permission in Principle

Reference No: 09/01417/PPP

Planning Hierarchy: Local Application

Applicant: Mr G Burgess
Proposal: Planning Permission in Principle for the erection of 5no dwellinghouses.
Site Address: 112 West Princes Street Helensburgh Argyll and Bute G84 8XD

DECISION ROUTE

(i) Sect 43 (A) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

(A) THE APPLICATION
(i) Development Requiring Express Planning Permission

- Erection of 5 dwellings

(i) Other specified operations

- Connection to existing public water supply
- Connection to existing public sewer

(B) RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that planning permission be refused due to the reasons detailed
overleaf.

(C) HISTORY:

09/01472/PP - Change of Use of ground floor shop (Class 1) to 1no. flat (Class 9) —
permitted 07/12/2009

(D) CONSULTATIONS:

Roads Helensburgh &  12.10.2009 Recommend refusal
Lomond




Page 86

Environmental Health 15.10.2009 No objections subject to conditions

Scottish Water North 09.10.2009 No objections

(E)

PUBLICITY: None

(F)

REPRESENTATIONS:

Two letters of objection have been received as has one letter of support.

B and P McCallan 102A West Princes Street Helensburgh G84 8XD (SUPPORT)

Frank Rooney And Lucy Thompson Flat 3/1, 104 West Princes Street Helensburgh G84
8XD (email and letter dated 08/10/2209) (OBJECTION)

U

Summary of issues raised in objection

The plans lack the necessary information and detail.
Comment: This is an application for planning permission in principle. Further
plans are not required at this stage.

The plot does not seem adequate for the proposed building.
Comment: See my assessment.

There is the potential of motor vehicles for 5 new houses. Where will they park?
Comment: The Area Roads Manager has recommended refusal. See my
assessment.

The existing vehicular access has bad visibility and is dangerous.
Comment:. The Area Roads Manager has recommended refusal. See my
assessment.

It is difficult for emergency vehicles to enter the site.
Comment: The Area Roads Manager has recommended refusal.

The close proximity to other buildings mean fire would spread easily.
Comment; This issue would be dealt with at building warrant stage.

To squeeze more households into this small already built up area can only
contribute to noise levels and the increasingly threatening atmosphere on
weekend evenings.

Comment: It is not considered that additional dwellings on this site would
contribute to these factors.

The erection of a dwelling of any height at this location would render our drying
green useless, thus affecting our standards of living.
Comment: See my assessment.

Is it in the interests of the community to allow another business to be disappear?
Comment: Planning cannot control market forces.

To shoehorn 5 new households into this area seems contrary to any sensible
notion of town planning.




(if)

Page 87

Comment;
Summary of issues raised in support

| am delighted to see such a well thought out development, it can only enhance
the outlook of the area. At the moment the sheds are an eyesore.




Page 88

(G) SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Has the application been the subject of:

(i) Environmental Statement: N
(If yes — free text area for summary of key issues raised)

(i) An appropriate assessment under the Conservation (Natural Habitats)
Regulations 1994: N
(If yes — free text area for summary of main issues raised)

(iii) A design or design/access statement: Y
- The dwellings will be developed as genuine ‘affordable housing.
- The ground floor flats will have ‘barrier free’ access and internal
requirements for wheelchair dependant people.
- The scale and design of the dwellings produce low energy running cost
which complies with targets for a low carbon footprint.
- There are a number of similar backland developments in close proximity to
the proposed site
- The proposed site is significantly less developed than other recently
approved sites within the town centre area.
- The window to window distances are complied with therefore there are no
concerns with regards to overlook.
- The proposed development is designed so as to satisfy ‘daylighting’ and
‘sunlight’ requirements.
- The amenity of neighbours will be improved since the existing garages will
be removed. This will remove an eyesore and a noise nuisance.
- The architectural design relates to the surrounding mix of traditional
properties.
- There will be high quality paviours and planting in the courtyard.

(iv) A report on the impact of the proposed development eg. Retail impact,
transport impact, noise impact, flood risk, drainage impact etc: N
(If yes - list of assessments/reports)
N/A

Summary of main issues raised by each assessment/report

N/A

(H) PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
(i) Is a Section 75 agreement required: N
(If yes, Summary of the terms and heads of agreement)
N/A
(If agreement not completed in four months, grounds for refusal)

N/A




Page 89

(1) Has a Direction been issued by Scottish Ministers in terms of Regulation 30, 31
or32: N




Page 90

(J) Section 25 of the Act; Development Plan and any other material considerations
over and above those listed above which have been taken into account in the
assessment of the application
(i) List of all Development Plan Policy considerations taken into account in

assessment of the application.

Argyll and Bute Structure Plan

STRAT DCH1 - This policy details of the scale of development which is generally
acceptable in the different sizes of settlements.

Argyll and Bute Local Plan

LP ENV 1 — This policy requires that the Council assesses applications for their
impact on both the natural, human and built environment.

LP ENV19 — This policy requires a high standard of design and that consideration be
given to setting, layout and density and design.

LP HOU 1 - This policy gives a general presumption in favour of certain categories of
housing development unless there is an unacceptable environmental, servicing or
access impact.

LP TRAN 6 — This policy sets out the parking provision required for developments
which are set out in appendix C of the plan.

(i) List of all other material planning considerations taken into account in
the assessment of the application, having due regard to Annex A of
Circular 4/20009.

The Council’'s Sustainable Design Guidance

(K) Is the proposal a Schedule 2 Development not requiring an Environmental
Impact Assessment: N
(If yes, screening opinion as to why an Environmental Assessment is not
required)

(L) Has the application been the subject of statutory pre-application consultation
(PAC): N

(M) Has a sustainability check list been submitted: N

(N) Does the Council have an interest in the site: N

(O) Requirement for a hearing (PAN41 or other): N

N/A




Page 91

P)

Assessment and summary of determining issues and material considerations
Settlement Strategy

The site is located within the Settlement boundary of Helensburgh and within
Helensburgh Town Centre as defined by the Argyll & Bute Local Plan. Policy STRAT
DC1 of the Structure Plan is applicable as well as Policies LP ENV1, LPENV 19, LP
HOU1 and Appendix A of the Local Plan. These Policies give guidance on the scale
of developments that are acceptable within the settiements and also the design
principles including layout and density. It is considered that the proposed
development does not accord with these policies.

Location, Nature and Design of Proposed Development

The proposal is to erect 3 dwellings and 2 flats on a site where there is an existing
commercial garage and outbuildings. The site measures approximately 415 metres
square. However 25 square metres of this is taken up with the access lane giving a
useable area of approximately 390 square metres. The site lies to the rear of an
existing 2 storey building which has a retail unit at ground floor level and domestic
accommodation at first floor level. It is within the town centre and the site is
surrounded by tenement buildings. The site is therefore considered to be backland
development.

While this is an outline application, indicative plans have been provided to show how
these dwellings would fit into the site. It is proposed to have a mews style
development with the proposed dwellings using approximately the same footprint as
the existing garages. This will have 3 dwellings to the west of the site where there
are existing outbuildings and 2 flats to the rear of the site where the existing garages
are. This would provide a courtyard area to the front of all of the dwellings. A patio
and garden area would be available for 2 of the properties and this will be tucked into
the north east of the site.

It is considered that the proposal is overdevelopment of the site, is backland
development and out of keeping with the settlement pattern of the area, which is
contrary to Policy LP ENV 19 of the adopted Local Plan. There are examples of
backland development in close proximity to the development, the closest being the
Flats at 90 West Princes Street which are just 27 metres from the application site.
However, these buildings are located to the north boundary of the site and their rear
elevation looks onto a play area which gives an open outlook. The proposed
development will be enclosed and constrained by surrounding flatted properties.
While minimum window to window distances may be met and the applicant has
shown in the supporting statement that sunlight and daylight are not an issue, it is
considered that the privacy and amenity of any prospective residents would be
adversely affected.

Appendix A of the adopted local plan states that all developments should have some
private open space, with courtyard style developments only occupying a maximum of
45% of their site. On the rear elevation the development would be hard up against
the boundary wall of the flats to the west. The dwellings will have no curtilage at the
rear and a limited curtilage to the front, each comprising a small area measuring




Page 92

4.5m by 7 (31.5 square metres) which is virtually all hard surface including bin stores.
Each of the proposed dwellings is indicated to take up approximately 61% of the
individual plots. The flatted development will also have a limited curtilage comprising
a small area of garden ground measuring approximately 6.2 by 6.2 metres (38
square metres). The applicant has shown that there are a number of modern flatted
developments within Helensburgh that have less open space associated with them
and most of this is given over to parking. However, these developments all have
direct road frontages as well as open aspects to the rear which contribute to the
feeling of open space and their setting.

On the basis of the flats to the west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the
site, the size of the application site, the number of properties proposed, the limited
outlook and amenity space of both the proposed dwellings and the flats and that in
turn the proposed flats overlook the dwellings then this proposal constitutes over-
development and its amenity would be severely undermined. The site also has little
amenity area associated with the development.

C. Road Network, Parking and Associated Transport Matters.

The site is accessed through a narrow lane measuring approximately 3 metres wide
and 8.5 metres in length. The area roads Manager has recommended that the
application be refused since the existing access sightlines are substandard and
unacceptable. He has advised that in order to improve this, for vehicle and
pedestrian safety, the access should be widened to 4.8 metres. However, this would
involve demolishing part of one of the buildings on either side of the entrance, which
is not a viable option.

Since the proposal is within the town centre, zero parking for one bedroom dwellings
is acceptable. Since the indicative plans submitted show only one bedroom
dwellings, no car parking is required. The Area Roads Engineer however is
concerned that vehicles will still access the site and to stop this, the applicant will
install a bollard at the entrance.

(Q) Is the proposal consistent with the Development Plan: N

(R) Reasons why planning permission or a Planning Permission in Principle
should be refused
It is considered that the proposal is overdevelopment of the site. Although the
footprint of the development will remain much the same as the existing garages,
replacing this with dwellings is not an acceptable option. These dwellings will have
flats and tenements surrounding all elevations and will feel enclosed and confined,
adversely affecting the amenity of prospective residents. This is contrary to Policies
LP ENV 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A off the adopted Local Plan which seeks to
resist development that would constitute inappropriate densities and
overdevelopment of sites as well as development that would adversely affect the
amenity of residents.




Page 93

(S) Reasoned justification for a departure to the provisions of the Development
Plan

N/A

(T Need for notification to Scottish Ministers or Historic Scotland: N

Author of Report: Stephanie Glen Date: 26/01/2010

Reviewing Officer: Howard Young Date: 29/1/2010

Angus Gilmour
Head of Planning




Page 94

GROUNDS OF REFUSAL RELATIVE TO APPLICATION REF. NO. 09/01417/PPP

1. The application site is located in a backiand plot in the rear court area of properties
fronting onto West Princes Street. It has traditionally been used as part of a painter
and decorators and for the repair of motor vehicles. The site is constrained,
overlooked and dominated by adjoining flatted properties particularly those to the
west fronting onto John Street. The site extends to 415 square metres, 25 metres of
which comprises the access. The proposal is for a terrace of three single storey
dwellings together with a 2 storey block of 2 flats. On the rear elevation the
development would be hard up against the boundary wall of the flats to the west. The
dwellings will have no curtilage at the rear and a limited curtilage to the front, each
comprising a small area measuring 4.5m by 7 (31.5 square metres) which is virtually
all hard surface including bin stores. Each of the proposed dwellings is indicated to
take up approximately 60% of the individual plots. The flatted development will also
have a limited curtilage comprising a small area of garden ground measuring
approximately 6.2 by 6.2 metres (38 square metres). On the basis of the flats to the
west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the site, the size of the application
site, the number of properties proposed, the limited outlook and amenity space of
both the proposed dwellings and the flats and that in turn the proposed flats overlook
the dwellings then this proposal constitutes over-development and its amenity would
be severely undermined. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP ENV1, LP
ENV19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan which, inter alia, presume
against development with poor quality or inappropriate layouts or densities including
over-development and overshadowing of sites.

NOTE TO APPLICANT

For the purpose of clarity it is advised that this decision notice relates to the details specified
on the application form dated 17/09/2009 and the refused drawing reference numbers
GB/A/01 and GB/A/02.




Page 95

APPENDIX TO DECISION REFUSAL NOTICE

Appendix relative to application 09/01417/PPP

(A) Has the application been the subject of any “non-material” amendment in-
terms of Section 32A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
(as amended) to the initial submitted plans during its processing.
Yes
If Yes: Enter a description of the “non” material changes.
Further information was submitted in the form of a supporting statement and
indicative plans.

(B) The reason why planning permission has been refused.

. The application site is located in a backland plot in the rear court area of properties

fronting onto West Princes Street. It has traditionally been used as part of a painter
and decorators and for the repair of motor vehicles. The site is constrained,
overlooked and dominated by adjoining flatted properties particularly those to the
west fronting onto John Street. The site extends to 415 square metres, 25 metres of
which comprises the access. The proposal is for a terrace of three single storey
dwellings together with a 2 storey block of 2 flats. On the rear elevation the
development would be hard up against the boundary wall of the flats to the west. The
dwellings will have no curtilage at the rear and a limited curtilage to the front, each
comprising a small area measuring 4.5m by 7 (31.5 square metres) which is virtually
all hard surface including bin stores. Each of the proposed dwellings is indicated to
take up approximately 60% of the individual plots. The flatted development will also
have a limited curtilage comprising a small area of garden ground measuring
approximately 6.2 by 6.2 metres (38 square metres). On the basis of the flats to the
west which dominate, constrain and overshadow the site, the size of the application
site, the number of properties proposed, the limited outlook and amenity space of
both the proposed dwellings and the flats and that in turn the proposed flats overlook
the dwellings then this proposal constitutes over-development and its amenity would
be severely undermined. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LP ENV1, LP
ENV19 and Appendix A of the Argyll and Bute Local Plan which, inter alia, presumes
against development with poor quality or inappropriate layouts or densities including
over-development and overshadowing of sites.




Page 96 Page 1 of 2

McCallum, Fiona

From: Frapatroo@aol.com

Sent: 17 March 2010 16:06

To: localreviewprocess

Subject: Re Planning Appl. 09/01417/PPP

To whom it may concern,

Re Planning Appl. 09/01417/PPP, Review Ref. 10/0004/LRB

Not addressed in the response of the planners is the question of emergency access. As acknowledge, the
entrance to the proposed court area is narrow, and is not easily accessible by a large vehicle. This was
one of the objections we raised and which, we feel, has not been properly addressed. However, the
proposal by the planners to erect a bollard before the entrance to prevent any resident of the proposed
dwellings parking their car in the restrictive courtyard would mean that no vehicle, emergency or otherwise

be able to gain access. Surely this is irresponsible.
Even was this bollard installed that it might be lowered in-an emergency:-

1. Valuable time would be lost finding someone able to lower it

2. It would be easy to vandalise such a bollard, thus rendering its purpose pointless. Vandalism is a
problem in this end of the town. Damaged shop windows are just part of the weekend; why would vandals
stop at breaking the bollard? That residents ought not park their cars in this concrete stamp of a courtyard

does not mean that they will not.

The problem of parking is a potent one. That the proposed dwellings have only one bedroom does not
mean that the occupier will not possess a car. As there are 5 new residential properties proposed there will
be potentially an minimum of 5 new motor vehicles requiring parking space on an already parking-saturated

street.

The other point not properly addressed is the issue of noise. Five new household will mean more noise.
The assertion that because the garage that presently stands on the plot will no longer be, that noise levels
will be reduced during office hours is an irrelevance. What happens while we are out working does not
matter. However, when people are home (i.e. outwith working/office hours) peripheral noise can be
irrititating. 5 new households will mean more people occupying an already, arguably, over-occupied area.
5 new households would, unarguably, mean a deterioration in the quality of life enjoyed by residents.

5 new households would increase the potential for anti-social incidents. The area is already densely
populated ... why cram in more dwellings and more people? To do so would be reckless.

To dismiss this concern of anti-social behaviour is to be blind to the current problem existing. Smashed
windows, drunken brawls, aggressive behaviour of some youths using the off-licence, smashed bottles,
loud music from the pubs and the masonic hall (as well as from some of the flats), do not make this area
particularly pleasant, not only a weekends, but often during the week also. To add 5 new households to

this environment is not good social planning.
The proposed site is undeniably an overdevelopment. That a garage occupies the plot is not an issue.

Nobody stays at the garage. As a place of business, it is locked an uninhabited when the working day is
over, thus there is no noise when residents are at home, returned from work, in the surrounding homes.

As far as we are concerned, several issues have not been properly addressed, or, as in the instance of
emergency access, ignored.

Please consider seriously these additional comments regarding the proposed development. We object
strongly to this ill-conceived proposal.

Yours sincerely,

Frank Rooney & Lucy Thompson

17/03/2010




Page 97 Agenda ltem 3c
JB DesignConsult

Architects and Designers

10 Kenilworth Avenue,

Helensburgh,

29/03/2010 / GB/A/L4 argyll and Bute,
(L:O"al Rf‘”gw Body, t - 0754 532 5806

orporate Serviees, w — jb-designconsult.co.uk
Argyll and Bute Council, e - info@jb-designconsult.co.uk
Kilmory,
Lochgilphead,
PA31 8RT
Dear Sirs,

Review Reference Number 10/0004/L.RB
Planning Application Reference — 09/01417/PPP

Subject;- 112 West PrincesStreet, Helensburgh, G84 $XD
Proposed re-development of commercial premises at above site :-

We confirm receipt on 23" March your intimation of a representation from the Planning
Authority Representee.

We enclose a document commenting on that for consideration by the Local Review Body.

Yours Faithfully.

a'. J. Black
For JB DesignConsult Limited

Agent for Mr. G. Burgess, Appellant.

Encl.- Report on appellant’s responses to the Statement of Case by the Planning Authority
c.c. Mr. G. Burgess + copy encl.

JB DesignConsult Limited Registered Office 17 Colquhoun Square, Helensburgh G84 8AD Registered in Scotland No 353336




Local Review
(Reference number
10/0004/LRB): for
Planning Application
number
09/01417/PPP

112 West Princes
Street, Helensburgh

Appellant’s responses (29th
March 2010) to the points
made in the Planning
Authority Statement of Case
dated 15 March 2009




Page 99

[Type text]

The Appeliant’s responses to the Statement of Case headings are noted below:

DESCRIPTION OF SITE

The site is stated as being surrounded by tenement buildings. This is not accurate, as only
22% of the site boundary directly faces a two-and half storey tenement to the west. Aimost
half (about 46%) of the useable site boundary has a boundary wall facing onto open garden
areas (or a single storey shed in part). These areas offer direct daylighting into the site, and
an outlook over the wall to clear and distant sky views.

SITE HISTORY

During the application process the appellant requested the Planning Authority’s definition
of overdevelopment so that the appellant could have considered potential options to alter
the proposal to meet Council requirements. Unfortunately this information was not
received until the date of refusal, as previously stated in previous documents.

The Applicant considers that it would have been possible to agree a compromise, and/or
approve an ‘in principle’ application with a Condition limiting the site to an agreed
development area or unit number limit, to satisfy the overdevelopment issue.

COMMENTS ON APPELLANT’S SUBMISSION
-BACKLAND DEVELOPMENT

It appears from this statement that the Planning Authority accepts that the proposals
adhere to historical development, which is one of the Council policy tests of satisfactory
backland development, and which Council policy states can be positive.

However their issue is with regard to the amount of open outlook and open space
associated with the proposals. The appellant has previously referred to these issues in the
Review application (Scheduled Document Number 1, second last page) and his Supporting
Report (Scheduled Document No. 5, Page 15, paragraphs 5-8).

In summary the Appellant has submitted that the extent of views and open space are
appropriate for an enclosed courtyard development of this type and in this location, and
confirms the site maintains an open outlook to the rear, and part of both sides over
boundary walls.

-PRIVACY/OVERLOOKING

The Planning Authority have previously stated and therefore accept that the proposals
comply with current Council and National standards for daylighting and privacy distances for
both existing and prospective residents. (‘overlooking’ - this word has no definition for



Page 100

[Type text]

testing except under the nationally accepted privacy diétances). The amenity and privacy for
prospective residents will be identical to endless numbers of existing and new housing and
flatted developments in the UK, which have exactly the same window to window, and
nationally accepted garden overlooking relationships with their neighbours as these
proposals. The existing flats around the site overlook neighbours gardens as is normal in any
flatted housing development.

With regard to the general comment on ‘overshadowing’ by adjacent properties, and
specifically by the flats to the west on John Street, the site does not suffer from significant
‘overshadowing’ for most of the day/time of year.

The appellant has demonstrated that daylight standards for both existing and prospective
residents meet national standards, and that sunlight penetration into the site is good, in the
Supporting Report (Scheduled Document No. 5) page 14.

The Planning Authority’s claim that the John Street flats to the west will ‘dominate,
constrain and overshadow the site’ is not correct. None of the apartment windows of the
proposed flats have a direct facing view of the John Street flats. There is no view at all from
the main apartments of three of the proposed flats. There is no constraint to the site
development. There is no sunlight overshadowing of the site by these flats from dawn until
almost dusk.

This view is confirmed by the enclosed photographs which demonstrate that
‘overshadowing’ is not an issue. The degree of sunlight penetration for most of the day/year
can be seen with:

1. Aerial photographs from two independent sources which clearly show the site in
almost full sunshine with little overshadowing, at different times of the day/angle of
sun direction.

2. Site photographs which show sunlight penetrating into the site, as far as the south
portion of the site, affording sunlight to all of the proposed development windows.

Therefore the appellant suggests that the proposals do adhere to Council Policy LP ENV 1,
taking into consideration the privacy of existing and proposed development by complying
with undisputed Council and National standards; and that under Policy LP ENV 19, the
development;

1. Has a high quality courtyard site layout design.

2. Has an appropriate density as discussed in the appellant’s Scheduled Document No.
1, third page.

3. And the site is not significantly ‘overshadowed’ to justify refusal on that issue.



Page 101

[Type text]

-OPEN SPACE/DENSITY

Although the three examples of other developments are not enclosed courtyard schemes,
and offer more open outlooks because of this, they provide as previously shown, virtually no
private or communal open amenity space for residents. Indeed the same is true of the
neighbouring ‘backland’ flats built in the nineties to the south of the Library, and in addition
their outlook is largely onto a large car park.

By contrast the appellant’s proposal as previously stated provides an average of 27 square
metres of private/semi-private open space per dwelling for resident’s amenity, as private
garden, or shared high quality hard landscaped courtyard. The open space available for
residents amenity use is about 35% of the site area, appropriate to this enclosed courtyard
scheme, whereas the examples referred to above provide virtually none.

CONCLUSION

The Planning Authority Conclusion simply summarises the points above, which the appellant
has already commented on.

The appellant’s conclusion is that;

1. In contrast to the Planning Authority opinion, the proposal complies with Policies LP
ENV 1, LP ENV 19 and Appendix A of the adopted Local Plan, as demonstrated by the
evidence provided during the Planning Application process, in the Local Review
application documents, and in this further response.

2. The appellant has previously demonstrated a local need for this type and location of
development, and support from the local community in general, and the Community
Council.

The Planning Authority’s principal objection surrounds the prospective resident’s
amenity. The real test of this is whether or not people would want to live in this
development. The appellant in discussion with local people and the Community
Council identified that many people looking to ‘downsize’ to a town centre flat
would find this development design and location ideal. Many people in this category
don’t want a direct street frontage property, and prefer a cul-de-sac, semi-private
courtyard for privacy, security, and reduced street noise. The appellant has already
had interest from a local businessman who has seen the proposals, regarding
potential purchase of a flat in this proposed development. His view on ‘amenity’ is
obviously different to the Planning Authority’s.

Therefore the appellant submits that there is sufficient local public interest in this
development to provide a sustainable house type in short supply in Helensburgh,




Page 102

[Type text]

and that the Local Review body should take this into account along with the
discussions regarding Council policies.

3. With regard to the letter of objection dated 17" March from Mr. Rooney/Ms.
Thompson, attached to the Planning Authority’s Statement of Case, the issue of
emergency access is not relevant. The proposed houses are as accessible to the Fire
Brigade and Ambulances as the current commercial property on the site. Both these
emergency services have easier access to the site with either hose pipes or
stretchers than getting up several flights of stairs to the top third floor flat which the
neighbouring objector occupies. The Fire Brigade can also reach the site with hoses
from the vacant garden to the south-west, and from the Library car park and gardens
to the north and east.

Developments such as the one proposed do not encourage anti-social behaviour.
That is a societal and Police matter.

An increase in cars is unlikely due to the nature of the ‘accessible’ designed one-
bedroom flats, which are unlikely to be attractive to car owners. Local knowledge
informs us that in the evenings there are many more car parking spaces available for
residents returning from work than are available during the day. A properly designed
bollard would be vandal-resistant, preventing cars from accessing the site.



Page 103

SUNLIGHT PENETRATION INTO THE SITE: AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHS

The aerial photographs above show the site (edged in red) in full sunshine at times during the year.
There is little overshadowing most of the day.

Top view supplied by Flash Earth satellite images; lower view supplied by Google Earth satellites.



4
o
-—
(O]
(@) ,
mﬁj i 611065 w,_

8
IO B ¢
321036

3810 44

"91S 8Y3 40 Jed e uan0 Ajuo uayl pue

‘Buiuana a31e} ul 3dadxa 31Is 3y} Jo

Suimopeysiano y3ijuns ou adnpoud Z MalA uo
1S9 U3 01 s1e|4 Y| "1y31 ‘uejd syl uo pailedo|

aJe sMala oy "a8elanod ysijuns 9 00T ISOW e

SOAI8I34 U340 31lS 2yl moys sydea3doioyd ay

SHdVYDOLO0Hd *

311S IHL OLNi NOILVH13INId IHDITINNS




	Agenda
	3a Notice of Review and Supporting Documents
	3b Responses from Interested Parties
	3c Applicant Response to Comments from Interested Parties

